OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 1

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

The Board of Governors for Truman State University met on Saturday, April 8, 2017, on the University campus in Kirksville, Missouri. The meeting was held in the Conference Room of the Student Union Building, and the open session of the meeting was called to order shortly after 1:15 p.m. by the Chair of the Board of Governors, Mike LaBeth.

Participating in the meeting were all seven voting members: Sarah Burkemper, Cheryl J. Cozette, Laura A. Crandall, Jennifer Kopp Dameron, Mike LaBeth, Jim O'Donnell and Susan Plassmeyer. Jennifer Kopp Dameron participated via conference call.

Also participating in the meeting were two of the three non-voting members: David Lee Bonner, one of two out-of-state members, and Carter Brooks Templeton, student representative. Michael A. Zito, the other out-of-state member, was absent from the meeting due to a previous commitment and his absence was recorded as excused.

Call to Order and Chair Report

Mike LaBeth called the meeting to order and welcomed all in attendance.

Minutes for Open Sessions of Meetings on January 25, 2017 and February 3-4, 2017 Susan Plassmeyer moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes for the open sessions of the meetings on January 25, 2017 and February 3-4, 2017, be approved.

The motion was seconded by Sarah Burkemper and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted.

President's Report

Dr. Susan L. Thomas, University President, provided a report on several items of current interest. She shared a legislative report which included an update on the state budget as well as the work of the Organizational Excellence Advisory Group, an on-campus group which was recently established to help answer core questions designed to guide the University's budget decision making into the future. In addition, she reported on the status of the Greenwood Center and the work of the Missouri Council of Public Higher Education (COPIIE) which recently formed two working groups, one to study administrative efficiencies and one to focus on performance funding. President Thomas noted the formation of an Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost Search Advisory Committee which will help lead an internal search for the next EVPAA and Provost. She indicated that if for any reason the internal search is not successful, an external search will be launched in August. She also noted the formation of the Vice President for Student Affairs Search Advisory Committee which will help lead an external search (internal applicants are most welcome to apply). Finally, she reported that the search for a Vice President for University Advancement will begin this summer. President Thomas provided an enrollment report, reporting that the University has contracted with an institutional aid consultant. Dr. Thomas ended her remarks by noting her recent participation in a faculty/staff comedy show hosted by the student group UpChuckles.

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 2

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

Advancement/Foundation Board Report

Charles Hunsaker and Denise Smith, Interim Co-Directors for University Advancement, and Dr. Sharron Quisenberry, Chair of the "Pursue the Future" Campaign Steering Committee, provided an update on Advancement activities, including a report on the Alumni Board Retreat and Meeting, the Foundation Board Meeting, and the "Pursue the Future" Campaign.

Annual Student Government Report

J. J. Dorrell, President of Student Government, provided the annual Student Government Report.

Annual Faculty Senate Report

Dr. Vaughan Pultz, Professor of Chemistry, and Dr. Debra Cartwright, Professor of Business Administration, provided the annual Faculty Senate Report. Professors Pultz and Cartwright served as the 2016-17 Faculty Senate President and President Pro-Tempore.

Finance and Auditing Committee Report

Sarah Burkemper, Chair of the Finance and Auditing Committee, provided a report on the committee meeting held on April 3.

Financial Report

Sarah Burkemper provided a review as of February 28, 2017, of education and general revenues and expenditures and auxiliary systems revenues and expenditures and a review as of February 28, 2017, of the Truman State University Foundation revenues and expenditures.

Resolution amending Chapter 9, Section 9.050, of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors pertaining to Investments

Susan Plassmeyer moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that Chapter 9 of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors, titled Fiscal and Business Affairs – General, is hereby amended in Section 9.050, "Investments" in words and figures as appears in Attachment A. New language to be added to Section 9.050 appears in <u>bold underlined italics</u>. Language to be deleted appears in [brackets and bold type].

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of Attachment A be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

The motion was seconded by Cheryl J. Cozette and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted, and the Secretary designated a copy of the document as Attachment A.

Academic and Student Affairs Committee Report

Jennifer Kopp Dameron, Chair of the Academic and Student Affairs Committee, provided a report on the committee meeting held on April 3.

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 3

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

Resolution amending Chapter 8 of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors pertaining to Student Conduct Code

Sarah Burkemper moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that Chapter 8 of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors of Truman State University is hereby amended by repealing Chapter 8, entitled <u>Student Conduct Code</u>, in its entircty and enacting in lieu thereof a new Chapter 8, entitled <u>Student Conduct Code</u>, as set out in Attachment B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of Attachment B be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

The motion was seconded by Laura A. Crandall and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted, and the Secretary designated a copy of the document as Attachment B.

Budget and Capital Projects Committee Report

Susan Plassmeyer, Chair of the Budget and Capital Projects Committee, provided a report on the committee meeting held on April 3.

<u>Construction Projects Report</u> Susan Plassmeyer provided an update on construction projects which had been approved by the Board at previous meetings.

<u>Contracts for Construction Projects and Equipment Purchases Report</u> Susan Plassmeyer reported that no construction projects or equipment purchases totaling \$25,000 to \$100,000 had been approved since the last meeting of the Board.

<u>Construction Project – University Residence Project</u> Cheryl J. Cozette moved the adoption of the following resolution:

> WHEREAS, the Board of Governors has determined that certain repairs and renovations are necessary for the building known as the University Residence; that these needed repairs and renovations include but are not limited to asbestos abatement and removal, exterior storm water drainage and site work, heating and air conditioning systems, electrical system updating to replace obsolete wiring and electrical panels along with some cosmetic updates and general reconditioning of the structure; and

WHEREAS, the Board has previously sought bids from general contractors for the needed work and has determined that the costs of such a project are not tenable under the bid request made and the bid proposals received, that the bids are hereby rejected and the repairs and renovations will proceed at the direction of the Board of Governors pursuant to this Resolution;

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 4

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

.....

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chair is authorized to appoint a sub-committee of the Board of Governors with authority to act on behalf of the full Board of Governors to proceed with repairs and renovations to the University Residence, under the direction of the sub-committee with said work to be done in accordance with the general outline of the scope of work set out in Exhibit C, attached, with the University acting as the general contractor; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the University Vice President for Administration, Finance and Planning is authorized and directed to implement the decisions of the sub-committee; to execute documents for the various projects in relation to the repairs to and renovation of the University Residence; to supervise, either directly or through delegation to appropriate University staff, the work of repair and renovation of the University Residence; and to report his progress to the sub-committee and to the full Board of Governors.

The motion was seconded by Sarah Burkemper and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted, and the Secretary designated a copy of the document as Exhibit C.

<u>Construction Project – Student Union HVAC Project</u> Cheryl J. Cozette moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the description and budgeted amount for the following project be approved:

Project Name	Project Budget
Student Union HVAC Project	\$190,000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the University, or her designee, be authorized to accept the lowest and best bid for the project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the description of the project, as reviewed at the meeting, be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

The motion was seconded by Sarah Burkemper and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted, and the Secretary designated a copy of the document as Exhibit D.

<u>Equipment Purchase – Student Union Building Dishwasher</u> Laura A. Crandall moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the purchase of the following item of equipment be approved:

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 5

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

<u>Item</u>

Estimated Amount

Student Union Building Dishwasher

\$145,000

The motion was seconded by Cheryl J. Cozette and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted.

Enrollment Fees

Sarah Burkemper moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Board of Governors established revised tuition and fees for 2016-17 at the February 4, 2017 meeting; and

WHEREAS, the proposed state budget for 2017-18 reduces state support by 9 percent;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following enrollment fees for full-time students be approved, effective with the 2017 Fall Semester:

 Undergraduate students who are enrolled in 12 or more, but less than 18, hours of academic credit for each semester:

Missouri Students	\$7,352 per academic year
Out-of-State Students	\$14,136 per academic year

2) Graduate students who are enrolled in 12 or more, but less than 15, hours of academic credit for each semester:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the designated fee for the Student Recreation Center included above be maintained at \$222 for each full-time equivalent student per academic year; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the designated fee for the Student Union included above be maintained at \$190 for each full-time equivalent student per academic year; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following additional enrollment fees for students enrolled in 6 or more semester hours during the academic year be approved as follows:

Page 6

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

Ì

1

- 1) A student activity fee of \$86 per academic year (\$43 per semester); and
- 2) A student government fee of \$4 per academic year (\$2 per semester); and
- 3) A student health fee of \$54 per academic year (\$27 per semester); and
- 4) An athletic fee of \$116 per academic year (\$58 per semester); and
- 5) An information/technology (itech) fee of \$34 per academic year (\$17 per semester); and
- 6) A sustainability fee of \$10 per academic year (\$5 per semester)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the freshman orientation fee be \$350 for freshman students during the fall semester, and a corresponding fee for freshman students participating in comparable orientation programs during other semesters, with each freshman student to pay such an orientation fee only a single time; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the University is authorized to establish summer school rates designed to enhance enrollment in such programs; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the enrollment fees for part-time students, interim sessions, study abroad, professional development, on-line classes and the other enrollment fees, and miscellaneous charges not listed in this resolution, be established by the President of the University, based on the above fees and charges, in accordance with Section 11.010 and 11.020 of the Code of Policies.

The motion was seconded by Jennifer Kopp Dameron and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted.

Agenda Items for Future Meetings

The Board reviewed a list of proposed agenda items for the regular meetings during the next year.

Dates for Future Meetings

Cheryl J. Cozette moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the next regular meeting of the Board of Governors be scheduled for Saturday, June 10, 2017, on the University campus in Kirksville, Missouri, beginning at 1:00 p.m., with the understanding that the Chair may alter the starting time and/or place for the meeting by giving due notice of such change; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that other regular meetings of the Board during the next year be tentatively scheduled for the following dates:

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 7

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

Saturday, August 5, 2017; Friday, October 13, 2017; Saturday, December 2, 2017; Saturday, February 3, 2018; and Saturday, April 14, 2018.

The motion was seconded by Sarah Burkemper and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted.

<u>Agenda Items for Closed Session</u> Sarah Burkemper moved the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that this meeting be continued in closed session, with closed records and closed votes as permitted by law, for consideration of the following items as authorized by Section 610.021, Revised Statutes of Missouri:

- 1. Approval of minutes for the closed session of the last meeting under Subsection 14 of the statute for "Records which are protected from disclosure by law";
- 2. Individual personnel actions under Subsection 3 of the statute for "Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when personal information about the employee is discussed or recorded;" and
- 3. Confidential communications with the General Counsel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if any business not covered by the stated reasons for the closed session is raised during the closed session, then this meeting shall be reopened to the public and an announcement about a resumption of the open session shall be made in the hallway outside of the meeting room.

The motion was seconded by Laura A. Crandall and carried by a unanimous vote of 7 to 0. Mike LaBeth declared the motion to be duly adopted.

The closed session of the meeting began shortly after 2:25 p.m.

Laura A. Crandall

Secretary of the Board of Governors

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 8

OPEN SESSION OF MEETING ON APRIL 8, 2017

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes were approved by the Board of Governors on the 10^{th} day of June, 2017.

Mike LaBeth

Chair of the Board of Governors

ATTACHMENT A

- 9.050. <u>Investments</u>. The investment of funds is handled in the following manner. This section may be referred to as the "Investment Policy."
- 9.050.1 <u>Scope.</u> This policy applies to the investment of all financial assets of the University eligible for investment and which are accounted for in the University's annual financial reports.
- 9.050.2 Delegation of Authority. The statutes of the State of Missouri, Chapters 172 and 174 (Section 174.630 R.S. Mo) (1995), authorize the Board of Governors to manage the University's investment program. Deposit and investment of state funds must comply with Article IV, Section 15 of the Missouri Constitution and Chapters 30 and 110 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. The Board of Governors hereby delegates responsibility for the management of the investment program and written procedures for the operation of the investment program to the President of the University. The Treasurer has the authority to receive and disburse funds of the University.
- 9.050.3 <u>General Investment Objectives.</u> The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity, and yield.
 - <u>Safety.</u> Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program. Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk.
 - A. <u>Credit Risk.</u> Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt. The University will manage credit risk by:
 - Establishing minimum credit ratings for each non-government security type.
 - Implementing a credit review and approval process, or hiring an outside registered investment advisor that has such a process.
 - Diversifying the portfolio to reduce the risk of loss resulting from the over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, issuer, or type of securities.
 - B. <u>Interest Rate Risk</u>. Interest rate risk is the risk that the portfolio value will fluctuate due to changes in the general level of interest rates. It is recognized that all fixed-income

investments carry some interest rate risk, and that longer maturities have greater volatility than shorter maturities. The University will manage interest rate risk by:

- Maintaining adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by making longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow purposes.
- Establishing maximum individual investment maturity (or duration) and maximum portfolio average maturity (or portfolio duration) limits.
- Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet expected cash requirements for ongoing operations, seeking to avoid the need to sell securities prior to maturity.
- 2. <u>Liquidity.</u> The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity). Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity). The portfolio may be placed in repurchase agreements or other investment options that offer same-day liquidity.
- 3. <u>Yield.</u> The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the University's investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. The University may establish a performance benchmark to evaluate performance; however, return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. Investments are limited to securities considered relatively low risk in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed.

9.050,4 Standards of Care

 <u>Prudence</u>. All University officers and employees involved in the investment process shall act responsibly as custodians of the public trust. The standard of prudence to be applied is the "prudent investor" rule, which states, "Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

2. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest. Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with which business is conducted on behalf of the University.

9.050.5 Safeguards and Controls

1. <u>Internal Controls.</u> The President is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure that will be reviewed annually with the University's independent auditor. The internal control structure shall be designed to ensure that the assets of the University are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. Procedures should include references to: safekeeping, delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements, and collateral/depository agreements. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits require estimates and judgments by management.

The internal controls shall address the following points:

- Control of collusion
- Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping
- Custodial safekeeping
- Avoidance of physical delivery of securities
- Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members or an outside investment advisor
- Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers
- Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third party custodian

- <u>Third-Party Safekeeping.</u> Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution selected by the University. All securities will be evidenced by safekeeping receipts in the University's name. The safekeeping institution shall annually provide a copy of its most recent report on internal controls Service Organization Control Reports (formerly 70, or SAS 70) prepared in accordance with the Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) No. 16 (effective June 15, 2011.).
- 3. <u>Delivery vs. Payment.</u> All trades, where applicable, will be settled on a delivery vs. payment (DVP) basis to ensure that securities are deposited in the University's safekeeping accounts prior to the release of funds. All securities shall be perfected in the name of or for the account of the University and shall be held by a third-party custodian as evidenced by safekeeping receipts.
- 4. <u>Sales Prior to Maturity</u>. Securities may be sold prior to maturity for the following reasons:
 - To meet unexpected liquidity needs,
 - To reduce credit risk or minimize loss of principal,
 - As part of a security swap that would improve the quality, yield, or expected return of the portfolio,
 - To adjust or rebalance the portfolio to be in compliance with policy guidelines, to better match expected cash flows, to better match the target portfolio duration, or to better match a designated performance benchmark.
- 5. External Management of Funds. Investment through an external registered investment advisor,

programs, facilities and professionals operating in a manner consistent with this policy will

constitute compliance.

9.050.6 Authorized Investments

- <u>Investment Types.</u> The following security types are authorized for the investments of funds by the University:
 - A. United States Treasury Securities U.S. Treasury and other government obligations that carry the full faith and credit of the United States for the payment of principal and interest. This includes investment in Treasury bills, notes, bonds, strips, and Treasury inflation protected securities (TIPS).

- B. United States Agency Securities Obligations, participations, or other instruments issued or guaranteed by any U.S. government agency, instrumentality, or government sponsored enterprise (GSE). This includes investment in coupon issues, zero coupon issues and strips, discount notes, callables, step-up coupons, floating-rate coupons, <u>supranationals</u> and mortgage-backed securities.
- C. Repurchase Agreements Repurchase agreements between the University and a commercial bank or primary government securities dealer. Investment in repurchase agreements must be covered by a signed master repurchase agreement substantially of the standard form designated by SIFMA. Acceptable collateral includes only securities in A. and B. above, and must be collateralized at a minimum of 102%.
- D. Collateralized Public Deposits (Certificates of Deposit) -- Instruments issued by financial institutions which state that specified sums have been deposited for specified periods of time and at specified rates of interest. The certificates of deposit are required to be backed by acceptable collateral securities as described in §§ 110.010 .020, RSMo.
- E. Bankers' Acceptances Time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank, otherwise known as bankers' acceptances. The University may invest in bankers' acceptances issued by domestic commercial banks rated [A-1, P-1, or the equivalent] *in the highest ratings category* by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). Purchases of bankers' acceptances may not exceed 180 days to maturity.
- F. Commercial Paper Commercial paper rated [A-1, P-1, or the equivalent] in the highest category by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Eligible paper is further limited to issuing corporations that have a total commercial paper program size in excess of \$500,000,000 [and have long term debt ratings, if any, of "A" or better from at least one NRSRO]. Purchases of commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity.
- G. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Negotiable certificates of deposit or deposit notes issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank or a state or federal savings and loan association or by

a federally- or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank; [provided that the senior debt obligations of the issuing institution are rated "A-", its equivalent, or better] <u>rated in the</u> <u>highest short term ratings category, or three highest long term ratings categories</u>, by <u>at</u> <u>least</u> two nationally recognized statistical-rating services.

- H. Corporate Bonds Investment grade corporate bonds, rated [A- or better] *in the three highest ratings categories* by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs).
- I. <u>Municipals Obligations issued or guaranteed by any state, territory or possession of the</u> <u>United States, political subdivision, public corporation, authority, agency board,</u> <u>instrumentality or other unit of local government of any U.S. state or territory rated in the</u> <u>three highest ratings categories by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating</u> <u>organizations.</u>
- J. <u>Asset-Backed Securities Asset-backed securities (ABS) whose underlying collateral</u> <u>consists of loans, leases or receivables, including but not limited to auto loans/leases, credit</u> <u>card receivables, student loans, equipment loans/leases, or home-equity loans rated in the</u> <u>highest ratings category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.</u>
- K. Moncy Market Mutual Funds Registered money market mutual funds that adhere to SEC rule 2a-7, and are rated AAAm or the equivalent by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
- 2. <u>Investment Restrictions and Prohibited Transactions.</u> To provide for the safety and liquidity of the University's funds, the investment portfolio will be subject to the following restrictions:
 - Borrowing for investment purposes ("leverage") is prohibited.
 - Reverse repurchase agreements are prohibited.
 - Investments in complex derivatives are prohibited. Prohibited investments include inverse floaters, leveraged floaters, mortgage-backed IOs and POs, equity- or currency-linked securities, options, futures, swaps, caps, floors, and collars.

į

- Contracting to sell securities not yet acquired (short sale) is prohibited.
- Investment in any form of mutual fund, other than registered money market mutual funds, is prohibited.

<u>Collateralization</u>. Collateralization will be required on three types of investments: certificates
of deposit, repurchase agreements and Letters of Credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The
market value (including accrued interest) of the collateral should be at least 100%.

For certificates of deposit, the market value of collateral must be at least 100% or greater of the amount of certificates of deposits plus demand deposits with the depository, less the amount, if any, which is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or the National Credit Unions Share Insurance Fund.

All securities, which serve as collateral against the deposits of a depository institution, must be safe kept at a non-affiliated custodial facility. Depository institutions pledging collateral against deposits must, in conjunction with the custodial agent, furnish the necessary custodial receipts within five business days from the settlement date.

The University shall have a depositary contract and pledge agreement with each safekeeping bank that will comply with the Financial Institutions, Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA). This will ensure that the University's security interest in collateral pledged to secure deposits is enforceable against the receiver of a failed financial institution.

4. <u>Repurchase Agreements.</u> The securities for which repurchase agreements will be transacted will be limited to U.S. Treasury and government agency securities that are eligible to be delivered via the Federal Reserve Fedwire book entry system. Securities will be delivered to the University's designated Custodial Agent either on a delivery vs. payment basis or through a triparty arrangement.

9.050.7 Additional Limitations

1. <u>Security Type Limits.</u> Investments shall be diversified, subject to the following maximum allocations per security type:

•	U.S. Treasuries and securities guaranteed by the U.S. Governmentno limit
•	Collateralized time and demand depositsno limit
•	U.S. Government agencies, instrumentalities and government
	sponsored enterprisesno limit
•	U.S. Government agencies callable securities no more than 30%
٠	Collateralized repurchase agreements no limit

 Commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, and negotiable certificates of deposit (combined).....no more than 50%

- Corporate Bonds.....no more than [25%] 40%
- Municipals.....no more than 25%
- Asset-Bucked Securities.....no more than 10%
- Money Market Mutual Funds..... no more than 20%
- 2. <u>Maximum Maturities</u>. To the extent possible, the University shall attempt to match its

investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. No investment shall have a maturity longer

than 5 years from the date of settlement. For mortgage-backed securities ("MBS") and Asset-

Backed Securities ("ABS"), the maximum weighted average life ("WAL") shall not exceed five

(5) years at the time of settlement. Investments are subject to the following maximum

maturities;

٠	U.S. Treasuries	5 years
٠	U.S. Government Agencies	5 years
•	Mortgage-Backed Securities	5 year weighted average life
•	Municipals	5 years
•	Asset-Backed Securities	5 year weighted average life
٠	Repurchase Agreements	90 days
٠	Bankers' acceptances	180 days
٠	Commercial paper	270 days
٠	Corporate Bonds	5 years
٠	Negotiable CDs	5 years

The University's portfolio shall have a duration consistent with its investment and liquidity objectives, and a maximum duration of 3 years. Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow requirements, a portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available funds such as bank deposits, overnight repurchase agreements or money market mutual funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.

ļ

 <u>Issuer Limit.</u> No more than 5% of the total market value of the portfolio may be invested in any one non-government issuer. Investments in <u>corporate bonds</u>, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, corporate bonds, and negotiable CDs will be combined to determine aggregate exposure.

9.050.8 Reporting

- Methods. The Treasurer shall prepare an investment report at least quarterly, including a
 management summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current investment portfolio
 and transactions made over the last quarter. This management summary will be prepared in a
 manner that will allow the University to ascertain whether investment activities during the
 reporting period have conformed to the investment policy. The report should be provided to the
 Board of Governors of the University. The report will include the following:
 - Listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period.
 - Realized and unrealized gains or losses resulting from appreciation or depreciation by listing the cost and market value of securities over one-year duration (in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 31 requirements). [Note, this is only required annually.]
 - Average weighted yield to maturity of portfolio on investments as compared to applicable benchmarks.
 - Listing of investment by maturity date.
 - Percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents.
 - Listing of each financial institution and security broker/dealer handling University investments.
 - Copies of the most recent statements from each financial institution and security broker/dealer handling University investments.
- 2. <u>Performance Standards</u>. The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified within this policy. The portfolio should seek to obtain a market average rate of return over a full market/economic cycle. A benchmark may be established against which portfolio performance shall be compared on a quarterly basis.
- 3. <u>Marking to Market.</u> The market value of the portfolio shall be calculated at least monthly and a statement of the market value of the portfolio shall be issued at least annually to the Board of Governors of the University. This will ensure that review of the investment portfolio, in terms of value and price volatility, has been performed.
- 4. <u>Credit Downgrades.</u> Credit ratings should be monitored on a regular basis. The University or its investment advisor shall review any downgrades below the minimum ratings guidelines and recommend an appropriate course of action.

9.050.9 Policy Considerations

 <u>Annual Review.</u> The policy shall be reviewed annually by the Investment Officer, as designated by the President of the University, and recommended changes will be presented to the Board of Governors for consideration.

1

ī

.

.

Attachment B

Chapter 8 – Student Conduct Code Code of Policies Page 8-1

Comment [u1]: Formated to be more consistent

with other chapters

CHAPTER 8

STUDENT CONDUCT CODE

Sections:

8.010. Purpose
8.020. Definitions
8.030. Administrative Authority
8.040. Jurisdiction
8.050. Expectations for Conduct
8.060. Relationship of Law Enforcement and University Conduct System
8.070. Interim Suspension
8.080. University Conduct System
8.090. Investigation and Disposition of Gender-Based Misconduct
8.100. Investigation and Disposition of Offenses
8.110. Sanction and Remedies
8.120. Review of Decisions
8.130. Interpretation and Periodic Review

8.010. Purpose. State statutes provide that the governing boards of public colleges and

universities "shall possess full power and authority to adopt all needful rules and regulations for the guidance and supervision of the conduct of all students" and "to enforce obedience to the rules." Although the grant of authority is broadly stated, it is well recognized that students are citizens <u>of the Truman community</u>. Students have legal rights and deserve to be treated with dignity and respect. For that reason, it is important that the University's standards of student conduct, and the procedures for the enforcement of such standards, are fair and reasonable and are made available to all members of the University community.

Truman State University is a community of scholars. The University aspires to transmit knowledge, to foster student development, and to promote the quality of a mature and diverse society. By enrolling in the University, the student neither loses the rights nor escapes the duties of a citizen but conducts his or her life in the context of mutual regard for the rights, property, and privileges of others. In seeking these goals, the University recognizes the significance of students' rights. Those rights include:

• freedom of expression,

Proposed April____, 2017

Page 8- 2

- autonomy,
- procedural protection,
- and equity.

By ensuring those individual rights, the University fosters an environment conducive to student success, *personal and social development*, and well-being. [In addition, efforts are made to foster the personal and social development of students.]

Of course, students have obligations as well as rights. As members of an academic community, students must observe rules that benefit this community. Students must practice personal integrity. By doing so, they respect the dignity, rights, and property of all members of the University community. The Student Conduct Code thus creates an expectation of behavior that the University views as acceptable and appropriate. By fulfilling these expectations, students can enjoy their own rights, while also respecting others' rights and furthering the University's mission.

Student organizations often enrich the campus and community by providing a source of intellectual, personal, and social development for students through their programs and activities. The University fulfills an important mission by providing procedures and policies for the registration and support of student organizations. Inherent in University registration of student organizations is the obligation of each organization to conduct activities in accordance with all University rules, policies, and applicable laws. It is the responsibility of the officers of each student organization to ensure that the student organization complies with the Student Conduct Code, that activities of the organization are conducted properly, and to actively oppose and prevent any organizational activity that would violate the Student Conduct Code. It is also the obligation of the officers of any student organization to advise and counsel individual members of their organization whose conduct could lead to misconduct allegations against the organization.

The University, as any other, must have a system to address those instances when a member, members, or student organization(s) fails to adhere to the expectations of the community. This Student Conduct Code describes University expectations of students and student organizations and the processes available when a student or student organization has failed to adhere to these expectations. The Code also strives to support the educational environment by being proactive in nurturing appropriate personal and organizational development.

While the university places a high priority on student rights, the University conduct process differs from criminal law processes. This process is designed, in part, to determine whether a student <u>or organization</u> has violated the Student Conduct Code only, not guilt or innocence. The University conduct process is informal and it is not bound by legal jargon, court-like proceedings, formal rules of evidence or the legal definitions that are the province of the criminal courts. Procedures and rights in student conduct proceedings are conducted with fairness to all, but do not include the same protections of due process afforded by the courts. Due process, within these procedures, assures:

- written notice,
- a hearing before an objective decision-maker,
- a finding of violation of Truman State University policy only when information shows that it is more likely than not that a policy violation occurred,
- and sanctions that are proportionate to the severity of the violation and prior conduct history.

This policy has been developed in accord with such philosophy and will be administered accordingly.

8.020. <u>Definitions.</u> Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, these terms will be accorded the following meanings.

Comment [u2]: The existing student conduct code has separate violation sections for students and for organizations. During the time input was sought the number one suggestion was to make the layout of the Student Conduct Code easier to follow. Specifically, many people were confused about the two separate sections of violations, why they sounded similar but not the same, and why like violations were numbered differently between the two sections.

This proposed revision combines the two sections and makes the violations applicable to both students and organizations (except where specified in subsection 22).

Throughout the document a clarifying statement such as "or organization" was inserted as appropriate.

Page 8-3

- 1. The term "**attempting to commit an act**" means when a student or student organization, with the purpose of committing an act, takes any action that is a substantial step toward the commission of the act.
- 2. <u>The term "binge drinking" means a pattern of drinking that brings blood</u> <u>alcohol concentration (BAC) levels to 0.08 g/dL. This typically occurs after 4</u> <u>drinks for women and 5 drinks for men—in about 2 hours. Source: National</u> <u>Institute of Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism</u>
- 3. The term "calendar day" means any recognized day of a year.
- 4. <u>The terms "Campus" and "University premises"</u> are synonymous and include all land, buildings, facilities, and other property owned or controlled by the <u>University</u>.
- 5. The term "**complainant**" means a member of the University community, visitor, guest or the University itself who is considering filing a complaint, makes an oral complaint or files a written complaint with the University alleging that a student or student organization has violated the Student Conduct Code.
- 6. The term "**complicit**" means associated with or participating in an act of misconduct.
- 7. The term "**condoned by an officer**" means a student organization and its officers may be held collectively or individually responsible when violations of this Code by those associated with the organization have received the tacit or overt consent or encouragement of the organization or the organization's leaders, officers, or spokespersons.
- The term "conduct hearing board" means a committee appointed by the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs to determine whether a student or student organization has violated the Student Conduct Code and, if a violation is found, to recommend the imposition of sanctions.
- 9. The term "Conduct Officer" means any person authorized by the [Dean of] <u>Vice</u> <u>President for</u> Student Affairs to implement the provisions of the Student Conduct Code and to provide assistance for any person involved in its operation. In most

Comment [u3]: Added because the term "binge drinking" was added to Section 18.3(c) Alcohol Violations.

The remaining terms have been renumbered.

Comment [u4]: This addition clarifies that "Campus" and University premises" have the same definition.

Comment [u5]: Since the last revision to the Code the title for the position of Dean of Student Affairs has been changed to Vice President for Student Affairs.

Throughout this document the title change has been made.

Proposed April , 2017

Page 8-4

situations, the Conduct Officer is the [Assistant Dean of Student Affairs for] <u>Director of the Office of</u> Citizenship and Community Standards.

- The term "[Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs" means the person designated by the President for the University to be responsible for the administration of the Student Conduct Code.
- 11. The "deferential standard" means that the individual(s) conducting the review will defer to the judgment of the decision making person or body unless a reasonable person would conclude that a clear error was made in the finding or a compelling justification exist to alter the finding. It is not merely a matter of whether reviewer(s) agree with the decisions. Findings may only be altered if there is clear error. Sanctions may only be alter<u>ed</u> if a compelling justification exists to do so.
- 12. The term "**faculty member**" means any person hired by the University to conduct classroom activities, to supervise other academic credit experiences, or other learning/teaching activities.
- 13. The term "health" means physical or mental well-being.
- 14. The term "**information**" means any witness testimony, documents, statements, or tangible material presented at a hearing or in the course of an investigation of an alleged conduct violation.
- 15. The term "**in violation**" means that the student or student organization has been found responsible for a violation of the Student Conduct Code.
- 16. The term "joint hearing" means any hearing at which two or more students or student organizations are accused of violating one or more provisions of the Student Conduct Code.
- 17. The terms "may" and "should" are used in the permissive sense.
- 18. The term "member of the University community" includes any person who is a student, administrator, faculty member, staff member, University official, or any other person employed by the University. A person's status in a particular situation will be determined by the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs.

- 19. The term "more likely than not" is the campus standard of proof. It is equivalent to the legal standard of "preponderance of evidence." The campus standard requires that a student or student organization will be found in violation of the Student Conduct Code only when the information would lead a reasonable person to conclude that it is more likely than not that the accused student's actions violated the Student Conduct Code.
- 20. The terms "**must**" and "**will**" are used in the imperative sense.
- 21. The term "**not in violation**" means that the student or student organization has not been found responsible for a violation of the Student Conduct Code.
- 22. The term "**officer**" means a person in a student organization who holds an elected or appointed leadership position in that organization.
- 23. The term "**paraphernalia**" includes any object that contains the residue of (a) alcohol or (b) an illegal drug or (c) any object that is used in the consumption or distribution of an illegal drug. Examples of "a" include, but are not limited to a beer bong and empty alcoholic containers. Examples of "b" include, but are not limited to a marijuana pipe, bong, or blow tube. An example of "c" is a scale used in measuring quantities of an illegal drug.
- 24. The term "**pervasive**" means any conduct which is sufficiently widespread or severe that it pollutes the educational environment and can be said to deprive one of educational access, benefits or opportunities. Can also mean "persistent" in the sense of a repetition of the act.
- 25. The term "**process advisor**" refers to those individuals who assist the complainant or the respondent in navigating the process of resolving a conduct complaint. The role of the process advisor includes: providing information to help with decision making; responding to questions about the resolution process and support services available; assisting in preparation for interviews, meetings, hearing and review requests, and questions for the opposing party or witnesses; and communicating updates on the progress of the resolution process as needed. Process advisors may attend meetings involved in the resolution process but they are not allowed to speak or delay scheduling of meetings. Complainants and

respondents may identify their own process advisors or request that one be provided for them. Process advisors do not have administrative, investigative, or decision-making roles in the cases where they are serving as process advisors. The same individual cannot serve as the process advisor for both the complainant and respondent involved in the resolution of the complaint.

- 26. The term "**policy**" or "**policies**" means the written regulations of the University as approved by the Board of Governors, the President of the University, or other University officials, and as set forth in general publications such as, but not limited to, the bylaws and policies of the Board of Governors, general/graduate bulletins, student handbooks, residence life handbooks, student organization recognition agreement, vehicle rules and regulations, or in special announcements about specific issues which are openly and fairly made available to students and student organizations.
- 27. The term "prior record" means that the accused student or student organization engaged in acts prior to the incident in question which violated the Student Conduct Code or legal statutes. A prior record includes, but is not limited to, past action taken for misconduct, any previous conduct hearing, documents sent to an accused student or student organization concerning any act of misconduct, and informal hearing records. A finding of ["in violation"] of <u>"Responsible" for violating</u> the Student Conduct Code will be considered a prior record even if a review of the finding and/or sanction is pending. A prior record can typically only be used in recommending or determining sanctions and will not be revealed during the hearing process except as outlined in the Sanction section below.
- 28. The term "**respondent**" means a student, students, or student organization who may have committed, is under investigation, or who has been charged with a violation of the Student Conduct Code.
- 29. The term "**sanctions**" means the consequences and remedies imposed by the Office of Citizenship and Community Standards when a student is found to have violated the Student Conduct Code.

Comment [u6]: In practice we use the terms "responsible" or 'not responsible" concerning a finding.

Page 8-7

- 30. The term "**student**" or "**students**" include all persons taking or auditing classes at the University, both full-time and part-time, pursuing undergraduate, graduate, or professional studies; matriculated in any University program; and those who attend post-secondary educational institutions other than Truman State University and who reside in University residence halls. Persons who are not officially enrolled for a particular term, but who have a continuing relationship with the University, are considered "**students**."
- 31. The term "Student Conduct Code" means the policy in this chapter of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors establishing rules for the conduct of students at Truman State University.
- 32. The term "student organization" means (a) any number of persons who have applied for recognition/registration as a student organization by the University or (b) any number of persons who have complied with the formal requirements for University recognition/registration as a student organization.
- 33. The term "University" means Truman State University.
- 34. The term "**University conduct system**" means the processes and entities created in this chapter to implement the provisions of the Student Conduct Code.
- 35. The term "**University official**" means any person employed by the University performing assigned administrative or professional responsibilities. This term specifically includes residence hall Student Advisors.
- 36. The [term] <u>terms</u> "University premises" [includes]<u>and "Campus" are</u> <u>synonymous and include</u> all land, buildings, facilities, and other property owned or controlled by the University.
- 8.030. <u>Administrative Authority</u>. The authority to administer and implement the Student Conduct Code is vested in the President of the University. Unless the President of the University elects to be directly involved in the administration of the Student Conduct Code, the authority for such administration is delegated to the [Dean of] <u>Vice President</u> <u>for</u> Student Affairs, who will implement the policy. The [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs will develop policies for the administration of the student conduct

Comment [u7]: This addition clarifies that "Campus" and University premises" have the same definition.

program and procedural rules for the conduct of hearings that are consistent with state and federal laws and with the provisions of the Student Conduct Code.

8.040. Jurisdiction.

- 8.040.1. Jurisdiction over Student Conduct. Students at Truman State University are provided access to the Student Conduct Code on the Office of Citizenship and Community Standards website http://conduct.truman.edu or may request a printed copy from the office. Students are charged with the responsibility of having read, and agreeing to abide by, the provisions of the Student Conduct Code and the authority of the student conduct process. Because the Student Conduct Code is based on shared values, it sets a range of expectations for the Truman State University student no matter where or when their conduct may take place. Therefore, the Student Conduct Code will apply to behaviors that take place on the campus, at Truman State University-sponsored events, and may also apply off-campus, when the administration determines that the off-campus conduct affects a substantial Truman State University interest. The University extends its jurisdiction to misconduct occurring online on university networks and sponsored sites. The University may also [responds] respond to complaints of misconduct online when non-university networks or sponsored sites are used (such as posts to social media websites), [even if the misconduct occurs off campus], when it falls under the "substantial university interest" standard. A substantial Truman State University interest is defined to include:
 - a. Any action that constitutes [a]*any serious or repeated ordinance violation*, misdemeanor or felony criminal offense as provided in local, state, or federal law.
 - b. Any situation where it appears that the student or student organization may present a danger or threat to the health or safety of him/herself or others.
 - Any situation that significantly impinges upon the rights, property or achievements of self or others or significantly breaches the peace and/or causes social disorder.

Comment [u8]: This addition clarifies that the jurisdiction of the student conduct code extends to all social media misconduct, not just social media on university networks or sponsored sites. This clarification is very relevant in light of the extensive, and increasing, use of social media.

Comment [u9]: This addition clarifies that various ordinances enacted by the City of Kirksville apply in light of the practice of the Kirksville Police Department's use of municipal court where ordinances are enforced rather than submitting offenses to state court through the county prosecutor.

Proposed April , 2017

Page 8-9

The above definition of substantial university interest applies to a student who is taking courses from the University online or through a distance learning program.

The Student Conduct Code may be applied to conduct that takes place from the time of admission, during the time a person is enrolled as a student, including during intrasemester breaks and between semesters. <u>Students on suspension or taking leaves of</u> absence with the intent to return are also expected to abide by the tenets of the Student <u>Conduct Code</u>. <u>Students who withdraw from the University may still be subject to</u> <u>conduct proceedings if the withdrawal was intended to avoid conduct proceedings</u>. Further, the Student Conduct Code applies to guests of students, whose hosts may be held accountable for the misconduct of their guests. Visitors to and guests of Truman State University are also protected by the Student Conduct Code, and may initiate grievances for violations of the Student Conduct Code committed by students against them. Those who are aware of misconduct are encouraged to report it as quickly as possible to the Office of Citizenship and Community Standards.</u>

8.040.2. <u>Student Organization Jurisdiction</u>. A student organization, its officers, and advisor(s) acknowledge on an annual basis through completion and signing of the Student Organization Recognition Agreement that they have read, reviewed, and agreed that the organization and its members will abide by the Student Conduct Code, [and the rules for student organization conduct.] Student organization officers are responsible for actively addressing member behavior that violates the Student Conduct Code, both individually and behavior that is considered an organizational violation. The "reasonable person" standard will be utilized by the Conduct Officer in determining if the behavior by the organization, its officers, members, and/or guests is the responsibility of the student organization. A violation exists when a reasonable person would conclude that it is more likely than not that the act in question did occur and is the responsibility of the student organization. Organizational responsibility may extend to events in which organizations participate as well as act as sponsors, hosts and/or cohosts (e.g. mixers,

Comment [u10]: This addition clarifies that students who take Truman's on-line courses, or who are participating in learning programs such as study abroad or various internships, are subject to the student conduct code when their conduct meets the defition of "substantial university interest".

Comment [u11]: This addition clarifies the current practice to apply the student conduct code to student's conduct when such student has an ongoing relationship with the University but is temporarily not attending classes.

Proposed April , 2017

Page 8-10

Greek Week, Homecoming). In such cases, the University will consider the following criteria to determine the extent of responsibility:

- a. Number of members in attendance;
- b. National association definition of "events";
- c. Location of an event (i.e. chapter house, organization rented property, etc.);
- Participation *in or knowledge* of *the planning of the event by* an organization leader [in the planning of the even]*regarding*;
- e. Use of organization funds to finance the event;
- f. Promotion or endorsement of the event by the organization to members and/or non-affiliated guests;
- g. Patterns of individual violations found to exist without proper and appropriate group control, remedy, or sanction; and/or the
- Importance of an organization's participation in relation to the event's purpose (i.e. Would the event still exist without the organization's participation?).

A student organization is subject to the jurisdiction of the University Conduct System if it allegedly violated a provision of the Student Conduct Code:

- a. Which occurs on University premises; or
- Which occurs at any location during activities or events arranged or sponsored by the University or by a student, student organization(s), or by an officer or a student acting on behalf of, or at the request of an organization(s); or
- c. Which occurs on a University network or a website identified as belonging to a student organization recognized by Truman, or
- d. Which occurs at any location if such conduct presents a danger or threat to the health or safety of members, guests, or others; or
- e. Which occurs at any location if such conduct is so grievous that it could seriously and adversely affect the reputation of the University, its community, and/or the pursuit of the University's objectives, or

Comment [u12]: Clarifies that an organization's leader, who has knowledge of a planned event, has a responsibility to assure that such plans will not result in a violation.

- If the organization(s) chooses to protect one or more individual offenders who are members, alumni or guests of the organization(s) or guests at the organization(s)' activity; or
- g. The offense, by its nature or after a review of facts and circumstances, is deemed an organizational violation since the organization, its officers, and/or leadership failed to exercise reasonable supervision of its member(s) or guest(s); or
- h. When, after hearing a complaint, the conduct officer or conduct hearing board deems that the offense, by its nature, was an organizational violation and not the actions of an individual member.

8.050. Expectations for Conduct.

At Truman State University, student members of the community <u>and student</u> <u>organizations</u> are expected to uphold and abide by certain standards of conduct that form the basis of the Student Conduct Code. These standards are embodied within a set of core values that include trust, community, civility and responsible citizenship. When members of the community fail to exemplify these values, campus conduct proceedings are used to assert and uphold the Student Conduct Code.

Any student *or student organization* found to have committed, to have attempted to commit, to have assisted, or to have been complicit in any of the following acts of misconduct is subject to the sanctions hereafter described in this chapter.

TRUST: Trust is a deeply held community value. Students *and organizations* at Truman State University exemplify honesty, integrity and a respect for truth in all of their dealings. Behavior that demonstrates a lapse of trust includes, but is not limited to:

- 1. <u>Acts of academic misconduct/dishonesty, including, but not limited to the</u> <u>following</u>:
- 1.1. <u>Cheating</u>: Defined as using or attempting to use unauthorized (a) materials, (b) information, or (c) study aids in any academic exercise.

- 1.2. <u>Fabrication</u>: Defined as unauthorized (a) falsification or (b) invention of any information (including research data) or citation in an academic exercise.
- 1.3. <u>Plagiarism</u>: Intentional representation of the words or ideas of another as one's own in any academic exercise. The term "plagiarism" includes, but is not limited to, (a) the use, by paraphrase or direct quotation, of the published or unpublished work or sections of a work of another person without full and clear acknowledgement; (b) the unacknowledged use of materials prepared by another person or agency engaged in the selling of term papers or other academic materials, including material taken from or ordered through the Internet; and/or (c) the unacknowledged use of original work/material that has been produced through collaboration with others without release in writing from collaborators.
- 1.4. <u>Sabotage</u>: Defined as, but is not limited to, the unauthorized interference with, modification of, or destruction of the work or intellectual property of another member of the University community.
- 1.5. <u>Facilitating academic dishonesty</u>: Defined as (a) assisting or (b) attempting to assist another to commit an act of academic dishonesty, whether or not that action is associated with any particular course.

2. <u>Taking property/property damage</u>.

- 2.1. Intentional taking of (a) University property or (b) property of another.
- 2.2. Intentional or reckless damage to (a) University property or (b) property of another.
- 2.3. Procuring any money, goods, services, or thing of value under false pretenses, including the issuance of a check, draft, money order, or use of a credit card knowing that it will be dishonored upon presentation for payment.
- 2.4. Knowingly taking possession of stolen property.
- 3. <u>Providing false and/or misleading information and/or falsification of University</u> records.

- (a) Lying, (b) deceiving, or (c) furnishing false and/or misleading information for the purpose of causing another person or University official to act or refrain from acting.
- 3.2. (a) Forgery, (b) alteration, or (c) misuse of any document, record, material, file, or instrument of identification.
- 3.3. Deliberately or purposefully providing false or misleading verbal or written information about another person that results in damage to the person's reputation.
- 3.4. Tampering with or improperly attempting to influence the election(s) of any student organization(s) or group.

4. <u>Unauthorized use of keys, and/or entry</u>.

- 4.1. Unauthorized (a) possession, (b) duplication or (c) use of keys, codes or passwords to gain entry to any University premises.
- 4.2. Unauthorized (a) entry, (b) attempted entry, (c) use of University premises or (d) remaining in private or restricted areas of University or community facilities is prohibited.
- Misuse of computing resources through failure to comply with laws, license agreements, and contracts governing network, software, and hardware use. Abuse of the University Computer Use Policy, including, but not limited to:
- 5.1. Any use deemed commercial or for-profit.
- 5.2. Any use that is likely, intended, or by negligence causes unauthorized network (a) disruption, (b) system failure, or (c) data corruption.
- 5.3. Any use related to achieving, enabling, or hiding unauthorized access to (a) network resources, (b) Truman owned software, or (c) other information belonging to Truman State University, either within or outside the Truman network.
- 5.4. Any use related to sending/receiving electronic mail that includes, but not limited to, the following: (a) solicitation or commercial use, (b) forging any portion of an

electronic mail message, (c) spamming (bulk unsolicited email), (d) sending unwanted messages to unwilling recipients, or (e) invasion of privacy.

- 5.5. Intentionally circumventing or building an unauthorized conduit through the University firewall with intentions of bypassing University (a) network management and/or (b) security devices.
- 5.6. Use of another individual's (a) identification; (b) network, email or other university based account; and/or (c) related passwords.
- 5.7. Unauthorized transfer or entry into a file, (a) to read, use, or change the contents; or (b) for any other reason.
- 5.8. Use of computing facilities or network resources to send (a) obscene, (b) harassing, (c) threatening messages, or (d) computer viruses or worms.
- 5.9. Any use that violates Truman (a) policies, (b) procedures, and (c) contractual agreements.
- 5.10. Any use that violates (a) local, (b) state or (c) federal laws.
- 6. <u>University Wordmark Violations</u>. Unauthorized use of the (a) University's name,
 (b) abbreviation, (c) trademarks or (d) wordmarks, including the Bulldog, logo,
 seal, or other graphic identity symbols. The phrases "Truman State" or
 "Truman State University" (or some form thereof) cannot precede the title of the
 individual, organization or group.

COMMUNITY: Truman State University students *and organizations* honor and value their community. Behavior that violates this value includes, but is not limited to:

7. Disruptive conduct.

7.1. Acting in a manner that can reasonably be expected to disturb or obstruct the academic pursuits, including teaching, research, and administration, or infringe upon the privacy, rights (e.g., freedom of speech), privileges, health or safety of (a) students, (b) organizations, (c) the University community, (d) guests, or (e) local community.

Comment [u13]: Please see an attached rubric showing how the violations for individuals and the violations for organizations for Sections 7, 8, and 9 were combined.

7.2. Acting in a manner that can reasonably be expected to (a) disturb or obstruct the free movement of other students around the campus including pedestrian and vehicular traffic on University premises, (b) interfere with the use of University facilities, (c) prevent the normal operation of University, or (d) residential and/or social activities.

Fire Safety and Sanitation

- 7.3. Creating a fire, safety, or health hazard through misuse, abuse, rendering inoperable, or degrading the effectiveness of any University safety equipment, firefighting equipment, or fire alarms.
- 7.4. Failure to evacuate a Truman State University-owned building during a fire alarm.
- 7.5. Intentionally providing a false report of an explosive or incendiary device or other chemicals or substances, or fire, that constitutes a threat or bomb scare.
- 7.6. (a) Causing, (b) condoning, or (c) encouraging the creation of any situation involving incendiary or other chemicals or substances, explosives or fire that reasonably may result in danger to another's person or property.

Obscene Behavior

- 7.7. Conduct that is (a) disorderly, (b) lewd, or (c) indecent, based on contemporary community standards is a violation of the student conduct code. An example includes public urination, which is likely to cause affront or alarm and is against generally accepted standards of decency.
 Breast feeding or expressing breast milk is not indecent exposure.
- 7.8. An act that (a) is a breach of peace or (b) that aids, abets, or procures another person to breach the peace on University premises, at activities or events arranged or sponsored by the University, or sponsored by a student organization(s), regardless of location.

Compliance with the Directions or Requests of University Officials.

Comment [u14]: We changed the example to a more common occurrence. The previous example was an example more relevant to NDP than the student conduct code.

The original example stated, "Indecent exposure to include the exposure of a person's genitals or other private parts when done in a place or manner in which such exposure is likely to cause affront and alarm, or is against generally accepted standards of deency."

Proposed April _____, 2017

Page 8- 16

- 7.9. Failure to timely comply with oral or written instruction from duly authorized (a) University officials acting within the scope of their job duties (b) authorized agents acting in the performance of their duties, or (b) law enforcement officers acting in performance of their duties.
- 7.10. Failure to identify oneself or organization upon request to (a) University officials acting within the scope of their job duties or (b) law enforcement officers acting in performance of their duties when requested to do so. A student is required to timely produce his/her University ID card upon the request of an official or law enforcement officer.

Use of Facilities

7.11. Students and organizations planning events in University facilities are responsible for knowing and being in full compliance with any applicable policies. Students and organizations should check with the University department or office responsible for the facility to guarantee that all procedures have been followed.

CIVILITY: Truman State University students and organizations exemplify civil and respectful treatment of each other in their dealings and interactions. Behavior that violates this value includes, but is not limited to:

8. Physical Harm

- 8.1. Intentional or reckless physical harm or threat of physical harm to any person.
- 8.2. Failure to respect the privacy of other individuals, including, but not limited to, eavesdropping, surveillance, or intruding upon the privacy of another person or group by means of bugging devices, concealed recorders, magnifying optics, etc.
- 8.3. Conduct that intentionally or recklessly threatens or endangers the health or safety of any other person(s).
- 8.4. Condone or encourage acts that cause physical harm.
- 8.5. Smoking or use of other nicotine delivery products on campus as prohibited by campus policy.

- 8.6. Bullying and cyberbullying through repeated and/or severe aggressive behaviors that intimidate or intentionally harm or control another person physically or emotionally, and are not protected by freedom of expression.
- 8.7. Stalking by repetitive and/or menacing pursuit, following, harassment and/or interference with the peace and/or safety of a member of the community; or the safety of any of the immediate family of members of the community.
- 9. Violation of University policies are defined above in this <u>or any other</u> chapter, when such policies are published or otherwise made known to <u>students or</u> <u>organizations</u> in a fair and open manner (including, but not limited to, the Student Handbook, Residence Life Handbook, <u>Housing Agreement</u>, General/Graduate Catalog, University websites, etc.).
- 10. Failure to properly maintain a student's or student organization's facilities, property (furnishings, equipment, etc.), or surrounding real estate property, whether owned or leased, so as to create a potential danger to the health and/or safety of the occupants or members of the University and surrounding community is prohibited.
- 11. Misconduct at University sponsored/related activities. Violation of University rules or regulations of a host institution sponsored/related activity.
- 12. Abuse of University conduct procedures, including, but not limited to:
- 12.1. Failure to obey the summons of the University Conduct system or University official.
- 12.2. Falsification, distortion, or misrepresentation of information to the University Conduct system.
- 12.3. Disruption of or interference with the orderly operation of the University Conduct system.
- 12.4. Initiation of a conduct proceeding knowingly without cause.

Proposed April, 2017

Comment [u15]: Clarifies that it is a violation of the student conduct code if the student violates any rule or policy originating from the Board of Governors Polices.

Comment [u16]: This is an example of the above Comment 14.

Page 8-18

- 12.5. Failure to provide, destroying or hiding information during an investigation of an alleged policy violation.
- 12.6. Attempting to discourage an individual's proper participation in, or use of, the University Conduct system.
- 12.7. Attempting or committing an act of retaliation against a person or student organization that has reported or intends to report a violation of the Student Conduct Code.
- 12.8. Attempting to influence the impartiality of a member of a conduct hearing board prior to, or during the course of, participation in the University Conduct system.
- 12.9. Harassment, abuse, or intimidation of a member of a conduct hearing board, <u>student or organization</u>, prior to, during, or after participation in the University Conduct system.
- 12.10. Failure to comply with the sanction or sanctions imposed under the Student Conduct Code.
- 12.11. Influencing or attempting to influence another person to commit an abuse of the University Conduct system.
- 13. <u>Complicity</u>. Condoning, supporting, or encouraging a violation of University policy, or the failure to appropriately address known or identifiable violations of the Student Conduct Code or law. Students who anticipate or observe a violation of University policy shall remove themselves from the situation and [shall]should report the possible violation immediately.
- 14. Social Host. It is the responsibility of any student or organization who hosts a[or], guest or another organization, on or off campus, to ensure that the [person] guest or guest organization knows and adheres to the Student Conduct Code and University policies. Hosts are responsible for all that occurs within facilities they use on campus, or own, or rent off-campus. In instances where guests or guest organizations violate rules or policies, the student or organization host may be held responsible. Whether a visitor is a student, alumni, non-student, or

Comment [u17]: This section addresses the frequent times when a group of students or an organization host an event, social or otherwise. Many of our organizations travel to other institutions for events. This section combines that two "Social Host" sections of the current Student Conduct Code into a single coherent section.

non-identified guest, the [student]host may be held responsible for violations of the Student Conduct Code and University policies. Responsibility under these rules may occur even if the host <u>or an officer of the host's organization</u> is not a participant in the activity or has left the visitor(s) alone. <u>A Truman student or</u> <u>organization is in violation of this policy if they violate the rules of another</u> <u>institution while a visitor at that institution</u>.

15. Advertising and Social Media.

- 15.1. Origination, circulation or posting of any advertising media or social media that contains matter that violates or is contrary to the policies of the University, other Board of Governors policies, Student Organization Recognition Agreement, Center for Student Involvement, Department of Residence Life, Student Recreation Center, Student Union, and/or federal, state or local law is prohibited.
- 15.2. Organization, circulation or posting of any advertising media or social media containing (a) false information, (b) misleading information, (c) obscene language or images, (d) patently offensive material, (e) the promotion of alcohol or illegal drugs, or (f) illegal activities/behavior is prohibited.
- 16. <u>Abusive affiliation (hazing</u>), which the law might recognize by the term "hazing" is any act on or off the campus of the University, that a reasonable person would find to endanger the mental or physical health or comfort or safety of a student or prospective student or member, or which results in the destruction or removal of public or private property, or which causes [extreme] embarrassment or [public] humiliation, for the purpose of initiation or admission into, affiliation with, or confirming any form of affiliation, or continued membership in a *recognized* student organization, *or any group*, regardless of an individual's consent to participate in the activity. Acts of abusive affiliation include, but are not limited to:
- 16.1. Any activity which endangers the physical health or safety of the student or prospective member, including, but not limited to, physical brutality, whipping,

Comment [u18]: This addition recognizes that hazing may occur by any group of students, irrespective of the group's recognition by the University.

beating, paddling, slapping, kicking, choking, scratching, branding, exposure to the elements, forced, pressured or coerced consumption of any food, liquor, drug, or other substance, or forced, pressured or coerced smoking or chewing of tobacco products; or

- 16.2. Any activity that endangers the mental health of the student or prospective member, including but not limited to sleep deprivation, physical confinement, placing prospective members of an organization or group in ambiguous situations which lead to confusion and emotional stress or other extreme stress inducing activity; or
- 16.3. Any activity that requires the student or prospective member to perform a duty or task that involves a violation of the criminal laws of this state, <u>city</u>, or any University policies, rules, or regulations published in University documents; or
- 16.4. Subservience, including but not limited to any activity which promotes a class system within organizations or activities which facilitate inappropriate levels of authority over students.

RESPONSIBLE CITIZENSHIP: Truman State University students *and organizations* are given and accept a high level of responsibility as role models. Responsible citizenship requires selfreflection and acceptance of the duty to model ethical and moral conduct. Behavior that violates this value includes, but is not limited to:

- 17. <u>Narcotics, controlled substances</u> (including but not limited to marijuana), chemicals, and drug paraphernalia violations.
- 17.1. (a) Manufacture, (b) possession, (c) use or under the influence of, (d) sale, (e) distribution of narcotic or other controlled substances, (f) drug paraphernalia, and/or (g) other chemicals is prohibited, without proper prescription or required license, except as expressly permitted by law or University regulation. Possession could mean *knowingly being* in the presence of narcotic or other controlled substances, drug paraphernalia, or other chemicals. *Each student or organization will take all necessary steps to see that this regulation is not violated at*

Comment [u20]: Added to be consistent with the companion alcohol violation which has the "knowingly" element.

Proposed April , 2017

Comment [u19]: Addition to clarifying that the City of Kirksville's ordinances are included.

Page 8- 21

functions they sponsor or host as well as on any property they own, occupy, operate, and/or rent.

- 17.2. Misuse or abuse of prescription medications and/or drugs.
- 17.3. Operating a vehicle on University property, or on streets or roadways adjacent to or abutting University property under the influence of a narcotic or other controlled substance.
- 18. <u>Alcohol violations.</u>
- 18.1. Public intoxication on University premises.
- 18.2. No Student or organization will furnish or cause to be or allow to be furnished any alcoholic beverage to any person in a state of noticeable intoxication.
- 18.3. (a) Manufacture, (b) possession, (c) use or being under the influence of including but not limited to binge drinking, (d) sale, or (e) distribution of alcoholic beverages or alcohol paraphernalia on University premises when such manufacture, possession, use or being under the influence of, sale, or distribution is prohibited by law or University rules. Possession could mean knowingly being in the presence of alcohol. Each student or organization will take all necessary steps to see that this regulation is not violated at functions they sponsor or host as well as on any property they own, occupy, operate, and/or rent.
- 18.4. Operating a vehicle on University property, or on streets or roadways adjacent to or abutting University property under the influence of alcohol.
- 18.5. <u>The sale of alcohol by a student or organization at an event is prohibited, as are</u> <u>donations, sales of items, or other financial arrangements that are used to</u> <u>secure funding for the purchase of alcohol</u>.
- 18.6. When alcoholic beverages are present at off-campus activities sponsored by a student or a student organization, (a) the student or organization must provide non-carbonated, non-alcoholic beverages and an adequate supply of food that is in plain view of those attending; and (b) the student or organization must not permit, encourage, or sponsor participation in pre-partying or any drinking games or themes that might encourage the rapid/excessive consumption of alcohol.

Comment [u21]: This addition was simply a merger to the organization section which already had this provision.

The word "occupy" was added.

Comment [u22]: Clarifying addition and to make consistent with the companion narcotics violation.

The phrase "including but not limited to binge drinking" was added.

Comment [u23]: This addition was simply a merger to the organization section which already had this provision.

The word "occupy" was added.

Comment [u24]: This addition was simply a merger to the organization section which already had this provision.

Proposed April, 2017

Page 8- 22

- 19. Possession and/or use of a firearm and/or dangerous material.
- 19.1. Possession of (a) firearms [including BB, paint, and pellet guns] or (b) any other weapons other than a common pocket knife on University premises or at University sponsored/related activities unless specifically approved by a University official.
- 19.2. Possession of (a) fireworks, (b) explosives, or (c) dangerous chemicals which are disruptive, explosive, or corrosive on University premises or at University sponsored/related activities unless specifically approved by a University official.
- 20. <u>Gambling</u> is prohibited at activities or events arranged or sponsored by the University, on University premises, or sponsored by a student organization(s), regardless of location. It is prohibited to:
- 20.1. Play or sponsor an unlawful game of chance for money or for anything of value (a) on University premises or (b) at a University or student organization sponsored activity or event.
- 20.2. Sell, barter, or dispose of a ticket, order, or any interest in a scheme of chance by whatever name (a) on University premises or (b) at a University or student organization sponsored activity or event.
- 20.3. Wager on a University team or organization in a competition, with or without an intent to have a direct influence on the outcome of the competition (a) on University premises or (b) at a University or student organization sponsored activity or event.
- 21. <u>Allegation of commission of felony, misdemeanor or other crime</u>. Allegation of commission of an act which may be a (a) felony or (b) misdemeanor or (c) other crime as provided in local, state, or federal law will also constitute a violation of this Code, and subject the accused student to conduct action, whether or not prosecuted by public officials.

- 22. Violations Applicable Only to Organizations.
- 22.1. All student organizations are responsible for ensuring that all bills are paid to both on and off campus vendors and creditors in a timely manner.
- 22.2. Student organizations will not knowingly enter into purchase or rental agreements that are beyond the resources of the organization's ability to pay.
- 22.3. Crowd size that exceeds such limits so as to infringe upon the rights and/or property of others and/or endanger those in attendance is prohibited. Student organizations should refer to other national parent organizations or University policies for specific information on crowd size.
- 22.4. Failure to provide adequate security personnel or other security measures in order to ensure the safety of those in attendance at an organization-sponsored event is prohibited.
- 22.5. Failure to provide adequate parking so that vehicles are impeding the normal flow of traffic, parked illegally or parked on private property without proper authorization is prohibited.
- 22.6. Conducting any event that interferes with the normal progress of academic events on campus is prohibited.
- 22.7. Failure to register and get appropriate approval for any outdoor event on or adjacent to campus with the Student Union at least five (5) days before the event is prohibited (30 days advance approval is required for parades and events involving fireworks).
- 22.8. Failure to adhere to specific time limits and other restrictions required of all outdoor events on campus involving bands or other forms of amplified music is prohibited. Outdoor events on campus must cease by 1:00 a.m. unless prior approval has been received from the University.
- 22.9. Failure to abide by the risk management policies established by the University, governing councils, or national organizations.
- 22.10. All student organizations will conduct any solicitation and fundraising activities in a manner that does not violate and is not contrary to the policies of the University or its Center for Student Involvement, Department of Residence Life,

Student Recreation Center, Student Union, Business Office and/or federal, state, or local law.

Acts of misconduct by a student <u>or</u> organization will be cumulative in effect, and all acts of misconduct may be considered together in deciding whether the Student Conduct Code has been violated and, if a violation is found, the imposition of sanctions.

8.060. <u>Relationship of Law Enforcement and University Conduct System</u>. Violations of federal, state and local laws are incorporated as offenses under the Student Conduct Code. When an offense occurs over which the university has jurisdiction, the university conduct process will usually go forward notwithstanding any criminal charges that may arise from the same incident. Should a student withdraw *or be on suspension* from the University when criminal charges are made, it is the typical practice of the university to pursue investigation and resolution of campus conduct matters, regardless of the fact that the student has withdrawn.

When a student is arrested, charged or indicted for a violent, alcohol, or drug-related offcampus crime, the University may elect to take action against that student for violation of the Student Conduct Code, which incorporates violation of local, state and federal laws as code infractions. In situations where information from law enforcement necessary to establish the facts of the case is unavailable proceedings may be delayed. *Students are always encouraged to report criminal activity to the appropriate law enforcement officials*.

8.060.1.<u>Cooperation with Authorities.</u> When a student is charged by federal, state or local authorities with a violation of law, the University will not request or agree to special consideration for that individual because of his or her status as a student. If the alleged offense is also the subject of a proceeding for a violation of the Student Conduct Code, the University may advise off-campus authorities of the existence of the Student Conduct Code and of how such matters are handled internally within the University community. The University will cooperate fully with law enforcement and other agencies in the

Proposed April , 2017

Comment [u25]: Clarifying statement. This provision clarifies that the student conduct code applies to conduct by a student on suspension.

> enforcement of criminal law on University premises and in the compliance with conditions imposed by criminal courts for the rehabilitation of student violators. However, the University cannot delay its processes unreasonably while criminal investigations are underway and without interfering will undertake internal resolution of complaints even though those complaints may arise from conduct that may also be criminal in nature. Individual students and employees, acting in their personal capacities, will remain free to interact with governmental representatives, as they deem appropriate.

8.070. Interim Suspension. In certain circumstances, the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs, or his/her designee, may impose a University or residence hall suspension prior to a conduct hearing. The University reserves the right to exercise its authority of interim suspension upon notification that a student <u>or organization</u> is facing criminal investigation and/or charges.

Interim suspension may also be used at the request of the Students of Concern committee or at the discretion of the Vice President for Student Affairs when a student presents a danger to self or others.

- a. Information related to the facts the university has regarding the student's <u>or</u> <u>organization's</u> conduct as well as the identity of the student <u>or organization</u>.
- b. The conduct in question and whether or not it is reasonable to believe that the student's <u>or organization's</u> presence on campus poses a substantial or immediate threat to the safety and well-being of him/herself or others, undue interference with a university investigation and/or disturbance of the university's educational mission.

Comment [u26]: This provision codifies and clarifies what has been the understanding that the Students of Concern committee can make a request that the Vice President for Student Affairs consider use of this Section in situations where a student presents a danger to self or others.

Comment [u27]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

Page 8- 26

- 8.070.1.<u>Reasons</u>. Interim suspension may be imposed only to ensure the safety and well-being of members of the University community or preservation of any University premises, to ensure a student's own physical or emotional safety and well-being, or if the student or student organization poses a reasonable threat of disruption of, or interference with, the normal operations of the University.
- 8.070.2. <u>Denial of Access</u>. During the interim suspension, a student or student organization may be denied access to any or all University premises, or any activities or events arranged or sponsored by the University or student organizations, as the [Dean of] <u>Vice President</u> <u>for</u> Student Affairs or his/her designee may determine to be appropriate.
- 8.080. <u>University Conduct System</u>. Reports and complaints of misconduct of a student <u>or</u> <u>organization</u> will be administered in accordance with the standards of due process and fundamental fairness as established by this Code.
- 8.080.1. <u>University as Complainant</u>. Individuals *or entities* outside the University may provide information related to student or student organization misconduct to the Conduct Officer for consideration. As necessary, Truman State University reserves the right to initiate a complaint, to serve as complainant, to initiate and/or complete conduct proceedings without a formal complaint or the cooperation of the alleged victim of misconduct when there is a substantial university interest to do so. Substantial university interest is defined in section 8.040.1.
- 8.080.2. <u>Group Violations</u>. When members of groups, individuals acting together collectively or members of an organization acting together in violation of any policy, they may be held accountable as a group, and a hearing may proceed against the group as joint respondents. In any such action, individual findings of responsibility and a determination of sanctions will be made with respect to each respondent involved in the incident.

Comment [u28]: Eliminates the argument that a business or community partner is not an individual and thus lacks standing to submit a complaint.

Page 8- 27

- 8.080.3. <u>Complaint Procedure.</u> Any member of the University community may file a complaint of misconduct against students or student organizations. Complaints asking for action on the misconduct are to be prepared in writing and signed by the complainant. Complaints are to be directed to the Director for Citizenship and Community Standards.
- 8.090. Investigation and Disposition of Gender-Based Misconduct: It is the responsibility of the Title IX Coordinator to ensure that investigations occur in all gender-based misconduct complaints. These complaints are not processed through the Student Conduct Code but are processed through the University Non-Discrimination Policy and Grievance Procedure. All other Student Conduct Code complaints will be handled by the process set forth in section 8.100 below. The Title IX Coordinator has the ability to assign any sanction available under the Student Conduct Code while implementing the University Non-Discrimination Policy and Grievance Procedure. All other student to conduct Code while implementing the University Non-Discrimination Policy and Grievance Procedure. All other Student Conduct Code while implementing the University Non-Discrimination Policy and Grievance Procedure. All other Student Conduct Code while implementing the University Non-Discrimination Policy and Grievance Procedure. All other Student Conduct Code complaints will be handled by the process set forth in section 8.100 below.
- 8.100. <u>Investigation and Disposition of Offenses</u>: It is the responsibility of the conduct officer to investigate all non-gender based complaints of the Student Conduct Code. When a complaint is received, the conduct officer will conduct an initial review which most likely will include a conference with the complainant and possibly the respondent. The initial conference will be followed by an investigation. This may mean interviewing witnesses and gathering information from other agencies (law enforcement, campus offices, etc.). This investigation is not the same as a police led investigation and standard rules of evidence used in the criminal court do not apply. After the complaint has been investigated and allegations of violation of the Student Conduct Code have been identified, the conduct officer will decide *the appropriate course of action*. Complainants and/or respondents [will]*may* be consulted prior to the conduct officer's decision to move forward with mediation or formal procedures. Both parties [will]*may* also be consulted regarding the type of hearing will be used to resolve the complaint. The conduct officer will make the final decision regarding the resolution process based on input from the parties, the severity of the charges and potential sanctions, the

Comment [u29]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

Comment [u30]: We believe that in a fair and just process all persons involved should be kept informed and involved as appropriate. However, there will be times when it is not appropriate. The term "may" simply makes consultation permissive rather than mandatory.

complexity of the evidence, and the availability and preparation of appropriate conduct board members.

- <u>No Action</u> Complaints that fall outside the University's jurisdiction, do not violate the Student Conduct Code, or that are not supported by sufficient information, may result in no action being taken by the Office of Citizenship and Community Standards.
- b. <u>Informal Resolution Through Mediation</u>. Uncontested allegations or complaints that can be resolved through negotiated procedures will result in mediation if agreed upon by both parties. Informal resolution will not be included in a student or student <u>organization's</u> conduct record. The conduct officer will work with both parties to determine a mutually acceptable solution. In these cases documentation of the incident and its resolution will be kept in university records, but will not be part of a student's conduct record unless future violations take place. Records, however, will be kept of the resolution and can be used in future conduct proceedings if appropriate to establish a pattern of behavior. Mediation agreements are final and not subject to review.
- c. <u>Deferred Resolution</u>: When the conduct in question is determined by the conduct officer to be a minor violation and the Respondent has no prior conduct history with the University, the conduct in question may be resolved through the Deferred Resolution process. If the Respondent takes responsibility for the conduct in question, completes an educational sanction, and is not responsible for any violation of the Student Conduct Code for <u>a term established by</u> the [remainder of the current semester] <u>conduct officer</u>, the resolution will not be included in a student's conduct record. If the Respondent fails to complete the educational sanction or is found responsible for a violation of the Student Code during the [same semester that a resolution is reached]<u>term established by the</u> <u>conduct officer</u>, the violation will be imposed. Records[, however,] will be kept of the resolution and can be used in future conduct proceedings if appropriate to

Comment [u31]: In practice it has been noted that students who go through the deferred resolution process late in the semester enjoy a relatively short period of probation. In those cases their probation period should extend through the next semester. There may also be times, on a case by case bases, where the student would benefit from programs that cannot be completed during the current semester. The term of probation should extend until all programs can be successfully completed.

Page 8-30

establish a pattern of behavior. The Deferred Resolution process is available only once for a student *and is not available to an organization*.

- <u>Formal Resolution</u>: Formal resolution involves a resolution process that will result in a conduct record if the respondent is found responsible for violating the Student Conduct Codes. Formal resolution involves either an Administrative Hearing or a University Conduct Board Hearing.
 - <u>Administrative Hearing</u> Administrative hearings are the most common method of deposing of conduct complaints. This method of resolving complaints is rarely utilized when suspension, expulsion or charter revocation are likely outcomes. The focus is resolution involving educational sanctions and working with the respondent to improve behavior. Administrative hearings, however, may also be used in cases of probation violation, severe or unusual circumstances or in situations where immediate action is necessary. [In]*Only in* cases where an administrative hearing results in suspension or expulsion for an individual or suspension/revocation of student organization, the respondentmay request a review. [The complainant may request a review in the case of a finding of "not responsible".]
 - ii. <u>Conduct Hearing Board</u> —Students or student organizations accused of a violation of the Student Conduct Code may have the complaint heard by the Conduct Hearing Board, of his/her/its peers under the discretion of the conduct officer. Conduct Hearing Boards are usually reserved for those situations where suspension and/or expulsion are possible outcomes for individuals or when student organizations may face suspension or revocation of recognition by the University. Conduct Hearing Boards may also be utilized when there is a need to interpret more complicated evidence or consider more complex circumstances.
- 8.100.1. <u>Complaint Resolution Through Mediation</u>. Mediation is appropriate when there is a dispute between or among students *or organizations*, the complainant desires that action be taken to stop an unwanted behavior that may be a violation of the Student Conduct

Proposed April, 2017

Comment [u32]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

Comment [u33]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

Comment [u34]: Once a respondent has been through a hearing and found "not responsible" it would be troubling to make the respondent go through another hearing at the request of the complainant. This provision was previously added due to Title IX and is no longer necessary since the Student Conduct Code no longer addresses Title IX offenses.

Code, the violation is relatively minor and does not present the potential to endanger other students or disrupt the campus community and the complainant does not want the complaint to result in a conduct record for the accused. A mediation involves the following process:

- a. <u>Mutual Consent:</u> The conduct officer communicates with both the complainant and the respondent, explains the various options for resolving the concern, and both parties agree in writing to mediation.
- b. <u>Notification:</u> Each party is notified regarding the behavior of concern, the time and date of the mediation, rules regarding the mediation process, the binding nature of the outcomes and the consequences of violating the agreements.
- c. <u>Mediation Process</u>: Mediation involves an opportunity for both parties to present and respond to concerns and to present and discuss potential solutions. The goal for mediation is a mutually agreed upon resolution. Agreements made during mediation are binding and final. One or both parties may withdraw from the process at any time and pursue a different course of resolution. The mediator may also terminate mediation if parties do not abide by the rules of mediation or if a mutually agreeable resolution is not possible.
- Motification of Outcomes: Participants will receive written confirmation of the outcomes of the mediation and the consequences of failing to abide by the agreements.
- 8.100.2. <u>Complaint Resolution Through Deferred Resolution</u>. Deferred Resolution is appropriate when the conduct in question is determined by the conduct officer to be a minor violation and the Respondent has no prior conduct history with the University. There are three parts to a deferred resolution:
 - a. <u>Notice of Time of Deferred Resolution Hearing</u>. After the complaint has been investigated, allegations of violation of the Student Conduct Code have been determined and a deferred resolution has been found to be an eligible course of resolution by the conduct officer, a notice is sent to the student with information regarding the deferred resolution hearing.

Notice will be in writing, and will be emailed to the student's University email address or mailed to the local or permanent address of the respondent. Once mailed, such notice will be presumptively delivered. Each letter will contain the following:

- i. A concise summary of the reported violation;
- ii. All policies the respondent is reported to have violated and the possible consequences if the respondent is found in violation;
- iii. Relevant procedures for resolution of the complaint; and
- iv. The date, time, and place of the hearing or instructions for the respondent to schedule the hearing.
- b. Deferred Resolution Hearing Process. Hearings to determine whether or not a student has violated the Student Conduct Code as reported, or as reasonably related to the facts as reported, will be conducted by a conduct officer according to this Code and any other procedures as issued by the [Dean of] Vice President for Student Affairs. Minor variations in established hearing procedures can be approved on an ad hoc basis by the **[Dean of]** Vice President for Student Affairs and the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards as long as they do not materially impact the fairness of the proceedings. Every effort will be made to assure fair and impartial hearings. The hearings will be conducted in closed session, and all hearings and records will be administered in compliance with FERPA. The respondent has the right to consult a process advisor of choice before, during and after any conference, hearing or review. Typically, the deferred responsibility hearing process is facilitated through one meeting with the respondent which includes an opportunity to discuss the respondent's rights within the process and to hear information regarding the facts of the case from the respondent. If the respondent takes responsibility for their actions, the proceeding will remain in the deferred resolution process, unless the respondent requests resolution through an administrative hearing or a conduct board. If the respondent does not take responsibility for their actions, the process will move to the respondent's choice of an administrative hearing or a conduct board.

- c. <u>Notification of Outcome</u>. If a respondent takes responsibility for the conduct violation in question, the conduct officer will determine an appropriate educational sanction based on considerations listed in section 8.110 and will document the sanctions and information for their completion in a decision letter that will be emailed to the student's University email address or mailed to the local or permanent address of the respondent. Once mailed, such notice will be presumed to be delivered. Decisions of a deferred responsibility are final.
- 8.100.3.<u>Complaint Resolution Through an Administrative Hearing</u>. The administrative hearing process is the most commonly used method for resolution of student complaints. Administrative hearings are rarely utilized when the complaint involves complex and controversial testimony or documentation and/or when the sanctions of suspension or expulsion for individuals or suspension or revocation of charter as a recognized student organization are possible. Findings of administrative hearings, however, may result in these more severe sanctions in cases where a student or student organization has violated probation, there are severe or unusual circumstances where a Conduct Hearing Board resolution is not appropriate or when immediate action is necessary. There are three parts to an administrative hearing:
 - a. <u>Notice and Time of Hearing</u>. After the complaint has been investigated, allegations of violation of the Student Conduct Code have been determined and an administrative hearing has been found to be the appropriate course of resolution by the conduct officer, a notice is sent to the student or student organization with information regarding the administrative hearing. Notice will be in writing, and will be emailed to the student's University e-mail address or mailed to the local or permanent address of the respondent. Once mailed, such notice will be presumptively delivered. Each letter will include the following:
 - i. A concise summary of the alleged violation;
 - All policies the respondent is alleged to have violated and the possible consequences if the respondent is found in violation;
 - iii. Relevant procedures for resolution of the complaint; and,

- iv. The date, time, and place of the hearing or instructions for the accused to schedule the hearing.
- Administrative Hearing Process. Hearings to determine whether or not a student b. or student organization has violated the Student Conduct Code as alleged, or as reasonably related to the facts as alleged, will be conducted by a conduct officer according to this Code and any other procedures as issued by the [Dean of] Vice **President for** Student Affairs. Minor variations in established hearing procedures can be approved on an ad hoc basis by the [Dean of] Vice President for Student Affairs and the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards as long as they do not materially impact the fairness of the proceedings. Every effort will be made to assure fair and impartial hearings. The hearings will be conducted in closed session, and all hearings and records will be administered in compliance with FERPA. The respondent has the right to consult a process advisor of his/her/its choice before, during, and after any conference, hearing, or review. Typically the administrative hearing process is facilitated through one meeting with the respondent which includes an opportunity to discuss the respondent's rights within the process and to hear information regarding the facts of the case from the respondent. During this conversation the respondent will state their belief of whether or not they are responsible for the allegations listed and the conduct officer will make his/her finding based on if it is more likely than not that the violation occurred.
 - Notification of Outcomes: Once a finding is determined, if the finding is that of a policy violation, the conduct officer will determine an appropriate sanction or sanctions based on considerations listed in section 8.110 and will document the sanctions and information for their completion in a decision letter that will be emailed to the student's University e-mail address or mailed to the local or permanent address of the respondent. Pertinent information regarding the outcome will also be shared with the complainant when appropriate. Once mailed, such notice will be presumed to be delivered. Decisions of an administrative hearing are final except in cases

Page 8-35

where the sanctions involve suspension or expulsion from the University or residence halls for a student and suspension or revocation of University recognition for a student organization. In these circumstances the respondent can request a review. The complainant may request a review when the finding is "not responsible."

- 8.100.4. Complaint Resolution Through a Conduct Hearing Board (CHB). Conduct Hearing Boards are used to resolve a minority of complaints. CHBs are most often used in the resolution of more serious violations of the Code or in situations where students face potential suspension or expulsion from the University or student organizations face potential suspension or revocation of their charter/university recognition. CHBs may also be used in situations where a fair and equitable process would be better achieved through the hearing of the case by multiple decision makers due to the complexity of evidence or circumstances surrounding the case.
- 8.100.5. Composition of the CHB. The Conduct Hearing Board (CHB) is comprised of students, faculty and [/or] staff. The CHB is chosen from a pool of eligible candidates. For each complaint, a new CHB will be chosen at random under the supervision of the conduct officer. Any members of the pool who have a conflict due to any prejudicial factors (anything that would prevent an impartial and objective determination) should remove themselves from consideration. One member of each CHB chosen will be designated by the conduct officer to serve as Chairperson, who will conduct the hearing and serve as the official representative of the Board. The Chairperson has final say on all questions of admissibility of information, appropriateness of questions, and on any procedural decisions. The CHB will render decisions on all requests prior to and during the hearing, and will be allowed to directly question all involved parties [respondent(s), complainant(s), and witnesses] during the hearing. The Chairperson may also permit parties to directly or indirectly question each other and witnesses if that can be done with maturity and civility. All decisions regarding findings and sanctions will be made by a majority vote. No student will be found in violation unless information proves that a violation of the Student Conduct Code is more likely than not to have occurred.

Abstention in voting is not permitted. Every voting member will either vote to support a motion or will vote not to support a motion.

The term for individuals chosen to be in the pool is two calendar years (January 1st year one through December 31st of year two), and a member may serve more than one consecutive term at the discretion of the [Dean of]*Vice President for* Student Affairs. <u>At</u> <u>least three</u> (3) members are necessary to hear a complaint. The Director of Citizenship and Community Standards is responsible for coordinating training sessions, hearings, and assigning complaints. The [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs or Director of Citizenship and Community Standards has authority to make interim appointments to fill any open slot from the three categories below. Additionally, the [Dean of] <u>Vice</u> <u>President for</u> Student Affairs or the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards may implement alternate procedures for any conduct complaints when the usual pool of CHB members is not available. The composition of the eligible pool will be as follows:

- a. [Six]<u>At least six</u> (6) full-time students who are appointed by the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs after consultation with Student Government. The Office of Citizenship and Community Standards will be responsible for recruiting and recommending student Conduct Hearing Board nominees to be appointed by the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs.
- b. [Three]<u>At least three</u> (3) Faculty who are appointed by the [Dean of] <u>Vice</u>
 <u>President for</u> Student Affairs and recommended by the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost after consultation with the Faculty Senate.
- c. [Three]<u>At least three</u> (3) [professional administrative] staff who are appointed by the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs and recommended by the Chair of the Staff Council with the advice and consent of the Staff Council. <u>The CHB may perform additional functions and roles as may be determined</u> from time to time by the Vice President for Student Affairs or the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards.
- 8.100.6. <u>Conduct Hearing Board Process</u>: Several steps, explained below, are involved in the process of preparing for and conducting a hearing utilizing the CHB.

Comment [u35]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

Comment [u36]: This change allows for there to be more members on the CHB as needed. The CHB, as set out below, is taking on more activities related to the student conduct process. A larger pool will make it easier to set dates for hearings.

Comment [u37]: This change allows for there to be more members on the CHB as needed. The CHB, as set out below, is taking on more activities related to the student conduct process. A larger pool will make it easier to set dates for hearings.

Comment [u38]: This change allows for there to be more members on the CHB as needed. The CHB, as set out below, is taking on more activities related to the student conduct process. A larger pool will make it easier to set dates for hearings.

Comment [u39]: This provision codifies what is now the practice regarding the Student Conduct Board. For example, the board members are now directly involved with the facilitation of the deferred resolution classes, data collection, essay reviews, etc.

Proposed April , 2017

Page 8-36

- a. <u>Notice and Time for Hearings</u>. Notice will be in writing, and may be delivered in person during a meeting with the conduct officer. Notice will also be e-mailed to the student's University e-mail address or mailed to the local or permanent address of the respondent. Once mailed, such notice will be presumptively delivered.
 - i. The letter of notice will include a concise summary of the alleged violation;
 - ii. The letter will state all policies the respondent is alleged to have violated and the possible consequences if the respondent is found in violation;
 - iii. The letter will include the relevant procedures for resolution of the complaint;
 - iv. The date, time, and place of the hearing;
 - v. A list of the University's witnesses (to be supplemented later if necessary); and
 - vi. A deadline for meeting with the conduct officer.
 - vii. The letter of notice may also direct the respondent to contact the conduct officer within two business days of receipt with a written response to the complaint.

Once the respondent responds, written notice of the time, date and location of the hearing will be sent to all parties to the complaint, who may additionally be notified in person, by telephone, or by e-mail. Such means may also be used when the respondent fails to respond to the mailed notice letter. If a respondent fails to respond to notice, the conduct officer will initiate a complaint against the student for failure to comply with the directives of a University official, and give notice of this offense. Unless the student responds to this notice within two business days by answering the initial notice, the student will be automatically suspended until such time as s/he responds to the initial complaint. In complaints where the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards serves as the complainant, another conduct officer may carry out his/her pre-hearing duties.

b. <u>Pre-hearing Process</u>. Multiple individuals are involved in preparations for a CHB hearing as outlined below:

<u>Respondent</u>. Once a student denies a violation they will be given a minimum of seven (7) days to prepare for a hearing. At least forty-eight (48) hours before any

Page 8-38

scheduled hearing, the respondent will deliver to the conduct officer a written response to the complaint, a written list of all witnesses the respondent wants the University to call on his/her behalf with full contact information for such witnesses, a list of all physical items the respondent intends to use or needs to have present at the hearing, and who has possession or custody of such information if known, and the name of any process advisor who may be accompanying them to the hearing.

<u>Complainant.</u> At least forty-eight (48) hours before the scheduled hearing, the complainant will deliver to the conduct officer a list of all witnesses the complainant wants the University to call on his/her behalf at the hearing with full contact information, a list of all physical items the complainant will use or needs to have present at the hearing and who has possession or custody of such information if known, and the name of any process advisor who may be accompanying them to the hearing.

<u>Conduct Officer</u>. The conduct officer will ensure that the above information and all other available written documentation will be shared between the complainant and the respondent at least twenty-four (24) hours before the scheduled hearing. Each party will also be given a list of the names of the hearing board members for the case. Should either party object to any members of the board, they must raise all objections in writing to the conduct officer immediately. Hearing officers will only be unseated if the conduct officer concludes that their bias precludes an impartial hearing of the complaint. The conduct officer will, prior to the hearing, attempt to obtain signed FERPA consents when appropriate from all parties and witnesses who will participate in the hearing.

<u>Witnesses</u>. In most cases, witnesses are to be identified in advance. The identity of a witness may be kept confidential for safety reasons at the discretion of the conduct officer if knowing the identity of a witness is not essential to the defense of the respondent. While witnesses are subject to questioning at the hearing, unavailable witnesses may submit their testimony by telephone or written statement.

Page 8-39

- Conduct of Hearings. Hearings to determine whether or not a respondent has c. violated the Student Conduct Code as alleged, or as reasonably related to the facts as alleged, will be conducted by a conduct hearing body according to this Code and any other procedures as issued by the [Dean of] Vice President for Student Affairs and the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards. Minor variations in established hearing procedures can be approved on an ad hoc basis by the [Dean of] Vice President for Student Affairs and the Director of Citizenship and Community Standards as long as they do not materially impact on the fairness of the proceedings. Every effort will be made to assure fair and impartial hearings. The hearings will be conducted in closed session, and all hearings and records will be administered in compliance with FERPA. The respondent has the right to consult a process advisor before, during, and after any conference, hearing, or review. If there is an alleged victim of the conduct in question, the alleged victim may serve as the complainant, or may elect to have the administration serve as complainant. Where there is no victim, the administration will serve as complainant. A student serving as complainant has the same rights to a process advisor as the respondent. Parents or other support persons may also attend but like process advisors are not permitted to speak, (i.e., make opening or closing remarks, examine or cross examine, ask questions, to submit and object to information, to address the hearing board) or delay scheduling any hearing, conference, or review. While previous conduct violations by the respondent are not generally admissible as information about the present alleged violation, the conduct officer may supply previous complaint information to the CHB, or may consider it her/himself in hearing the complaint, if any of the following applies:
 - I. The respondent was previously found to be responsible;
 - II. The previous incident was substantially similar to the present allegation;
 - III. An informal resolution process resulted in an agreement previously based on a similar allegation; or
 - IV. Information indicates a pattern of behavior and substantial conformity with that pattern by the accused student.

- d. <u>Hearing Deliberations</u>. Deliberations will take place in a private setting with only members of the Board in attendance. Once a finding is determined, if the finding is that of a policy violation, the Conduct Hearing Board (CHB) will determine appropriate sanctions. The Chair of the Board will contact the conduct officer by telephone to learn if there is a previous history that should be considered in the sanctioning process. Sanctions and factors that should be considered in sanctioning decisions appear in section 8.110. The report should be expressed in a finding supported by the recitation of the evidence considered as the basis of the finding with citations to the rules implicated by the facts and charges. This report should conclude with recommended sanctions and a rationale for how the sanctions related to the findings. This report should typically not exceed two pages in length, and must be submitted to the conduct officer within 48 hours after the end of deliberations. The conduct officer will inform the parties of the results within seven (7) days after the hearing *as allowed under FERPA*.
- e. <u>Record of Hearings</u>. There will be a single verbatim record, such as a tape <u>or</u> <u>digital</u> recording, of all hearings before a Conduct Hearing Board. The record will be the property of the University. In the event a student or student organization petitions for a review of a decision or a sanction and wishes to review a verbatim record, he/she/it may make a request in writing to do so to the [Dean of] <u>Vice</u> <u>President for</u> Student Affairs. A student petitioning for a review or student organization may request a typed summation of the hearing. The transcription should normally be provided subject to payment of costs for the production of the transcript. Personally identifiable information will be deleted, unless FERPA consents have been sought and obtained from those students mentioned in the record.
- f. <u>Notification of Outcomes</u>. The outcome of a campus hearing is part of the educational record of the respondent and is protected from release under a federal law, FERPA. Truman State University <u>may</u> release publicly the name, nature of the violation and the sanction for any student who is found in violation of a Truman State University policy that is a non forcible sex offense or a "crime of

Comment [u40]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

violence," including: arson, burglary, robbery, criminal homicide, sex offenses, assault, destruction/damage/vandalism of property and kidnapping/abduction. Truman State University may release this information to the complainant in any of these offenses regardless of the outcome, but complainants are cautioned that FERPA does not permit them to re-release this information to others. Additionally, student organizations are not protected under FERPA and information from their hearings may be released to the public upon request based upon the judgment of the conduct officer. Information regarding conduct actions involving local chapters may be shared with national offices. *Sex offenses notifications are processed through the University Non-*

Discrimination Policy and Grievance Procedure and are not included in this subsection.

- 8.110. Sanctions and Remedies. In each complaint in which a conduct hearing determines that a student or student organization has violated the Student Conduct Code, the sanction or sanctions will be determined in accordance with the rules of this Code. Following any conduct hearing, the decision will be sent via e-mail to the student's University e-mail address or the United States Postal Service mail or hand delivered to the respondent, and complainant, and if applicable, to the last known address. Said notice will include a concise summary on the decision and recommendation of sanction(s), and information on the review process. Once mailed, such notice will be presumed to be delivered.
- 8.110.1. <u>Listing of Sanctions</u>. The following sanctions may be imposed upon any student or student organization found to have violated the Student Conduct Code.
 - <u>Warning.</u> A notice in writing to the student or student organization that the student or student organization is violating or has violated one or more provisions of the Student Conduct Code.
 - <u>Probation.</u> A written reprimand for one or more violations of the Student Conduct Code and, when appropriate, conditions for continued enrollment or continued recognition. Probation is for a designated period of time, and it includes the

Proposed April, 2017

Comment [u41]: Clarifying statement. No substantive changes.

Page 8- 41

probability of more severe conduct sanctions if the student or student organization fails to fulfill the conditions for continued enrollment or continued recognition or is found to be violating or to have violated any provisions of the Student Conduct Code during the probationary period.

- 3. Loss of Privileges. Denial of specified privileges for a designated period of time.
- 4. <u>Restitution</u>. Compensation for loss, damage or injury. This may take the form of appropriate service and/or monetary or material replacement.
- <u>Discretionary Sanctions</u>. Work assignments, service to the University, or other related discretionary assignments. Such assignments are to be supervised by, and must have the prior approval of, a conduct officer.
- <u>Educational Sanctions</u>. Projects or assignments designed to educate a student or student organization(s) in connection with the effect of their behavior on the community.
- 7. <u>Residence Hall Probation</u>. A written reprimand for one or more violations of the Residence Life Handbook and/or Student Conduct Code and, when appropriate, conditions for continued residence on campus. Probation is for a designated period of time, and it includes the probability for more severe conduct sanctions if the student fails to fulfill the conditions for continued residence or is found to be violating or to have violated any provisions of the Residence Life Handbook or the Student Conduct Code during the probationary period.
- <u>Residence Hall Suspension</u>. Separation of a student or student organization from the residence halls for a definite period of time, after which the student is eligible to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified.
- 9. <u>Residence Hall Expulsion</u>. Permanent separation of a student or student organization from the residence halls.
- <u>Interim Suspension</u>. Temporary separation of a student or student organization from the University pending completion of conduct procedures, as referenced in Section 8.070.
- 11. <u>Limited Access</u>. A student or student organization may be denied access to any or all of University premises, or any activities or events arranged or sponsored by the

University or student organization, as the **[Dean of]** <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs or the Conduct Officer may determine to be appropriate.

- 12. Interim Suspension of Participation. Separation of a student or student organization from participation in a University recognized activity or organization for a definite period of time, after which the student or student organization is eligible to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified. While on interim suspension of participation, the student or student organization is denied access to University premises, and all University or student organization sponsored activity. In the case where a student is a member of a student organization, the student is prohibited from attending the student organization's activities on or off-campus, pending completion of the misconduct procedures.
- 13. <u>Recommendation for Charter Revocation</u>. An official request to the national office that the local charter be revoked.
- 14. <u>Revocation or Denial of University Registration/Recognition</u>. Permanent severance of the organization's relationship with the University.
- 15. <u>Denial of Privilege to Re-enroll</u>. This permits the student to complete the current semester barring further violations, but prohibits the individual from enrolling for a definite period of time, after which the student is permitted to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified. Records are encumbered.
- 16. <u>University Suspension</u>. Separation of the student or student organization from the University for a definite period of time, after which the student or student organization is eligible to return. Conditions for readmission may be specified. Records will note a sanction of suspension due to conduct proceedings. While on university suspension, the student or student organization is denied access to University premises, and all University or student organization, the student is prohibited from attending the student organization's activities on or off-campus.
- <u>University Expulsion</u>. Permanent separation of the student from the University. Records will note a sanction of expulsion due to conduct proceedings. Upon expulsion, the student is denied access to University premises, and all University

or student organization sponsored activity. In the case where a student is a member of a student organization, the student is prohibited from attending the student organization's activities on or off-campus.

- 8.110.2. Parental Notification. Subject to FERPA, Truman State University reserves the right to notify parents/guardians of [dependent]students regarding any conduct situation, particularly alcohol and other drug <u>related</u> violations. [Truman State University may also notify parents/guardians of non-dependent students who are under age 21 of alcohol and/or drug policy violations. Where a student is not-dependent,] Truman State University may contact parents/guardians to inform them of situations in which there is a health and/or safety risk. Truman State University also reserves the right to determine which Truman State University officials have a need to know about individual conduct complaints pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.
- 8.110.3. <u>Multiple Sanctions</u>. More than one of the sanctions listed above may be imposed for any single violation.
- 8.110.4. <u>Conditions Leading to More Severe Sanctions</u>. If any of the following conditions exist in a violation of the Student Conduct Code, more severe or multiple sanctions may be given to the respondent:
 - Information that the complainant was intentionally selected because of the complainant's actual or perceived race, religion, national origin, gender, ethnicity, sexual orientation, or disability;
 - b. The use or possession of a firearm(s) or other weapon(s);
 - c. The possession of a controlled substance, or information that the respondent(s) was under the influence of a controlled substance;
 - d. The existence of a prior record of violation(s) in this chapter by the respondent(s); and
 - e. Any additional factors which contribute to the severity of the offense.

Comment [u42]: This Section simplifies the provisions related to parental notification and allows for a case by case determination of the FERPA implications related to a particular parental notification.

Other mitigating factors can serve as a cause to impose more severe sanctions such as failure to express regret, failure to recognize errors in judgment and/or unwillingness to address factors leading to the behavior.

8.110.5. <u>Responsible Action Policy</u>. The welfare of our students is of the highest importance to Truman State University. There will be times when individual students, both on and off campus, may have knowledge of a situation that may present a significant threat to the health and welfare of themselves or others. Truman wants to eliminate any hesitation that students or student organizations might have in obtaining help due to concern that their own behavior might be a violation of University policy.

The University will take into consideration the positive impact of reporting an incident on the welfare of students when determining the appropriate response for policy violations by the reporter of the incident. Any possible negative consequence for the reporter of the problem will be evaluated against the positive consequences of the intervention for the student in need. Responsible citizens recognize and accept the duty to make ethical and moral decisions about the health and safety of themselves or others even when to do so might result in personal inconvenience. At a minimum, Truman hopes that a student or student organization would make an anonymous report that would put the student in need in touch with professional helpers. If charged and found responsible for a violation of the Code, sanctions imposed, if any, will be less severe when students or student organizations appropriately report dangerous circumstances than if students or student organizations fail to report.

The University provides amnesty to students who have experienced violent crimes and who may be hesitant to file a complaint because they fear that they themselves may be accused of minor policy violations, such as underage drinking, at the time of the incident. Educational options may be explored, but no conduct proceedings against the complainant or conduct record will result.

8.110.6. Additional Conditions Leading to Less Severe Sanctions.

Mitigating factors can serve as a cause to moderate a sanction. If any of the following conditions exist in a violation of the Student Conduct Code, less severe or fewer sanctions may be given to the respondent including but not limited to payment of restitution, sincere regret, acceptance of responsibility for the misconduct, taking steps to ensure the misconduct does not occur again, etc.

- 8.110.7. <u>Additional Actions</u>. The foregoing sanctions are in addition to any actions that any other office(s) is authorized to take for conduct violations or any actions authorized to be taken by faculty members or academic deans for acts of academic misconduct.
- 8.110.8. Student and Student Organization Records, Record Retention, and Record

Consideration in Organization Sanctions. [Conduct]Subject to Section 8.100(c) which set out that a successful deferred responsibility resolution is not included in a student's conduct record, conduct sanctions become part of the student's conduct record. Conduct records of students will be kept for a period of no more than seven (7) years after the academic year when final disposition of the violation occurred, except in complaints of suspension and expulsion, where the record will be kept permanently. Student conduct records may be kept longer due to special circumstances, as deemed necessary by the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs. Conduct records of student organizations will be kept permanently for historical and archival purposes. Generally, a five-year time frame will be utilized when considering sanctions for a student organization. However, a longer time frame may be considered when evaluating sanctions for serious violations of the Code (e.g., patterns of organizational behavior that include alcohol and drug related misconduct, abusive affiliation, life safety issues, etc.).

8.120. <u>Requesting a Review by the President or his/her Designee after Administrative and Conduct Board Hearings.</u> When a case is eligible for a review (*i.e., in cases resulting in suspension, expulsion, or revocation of charter*), a student or student organization may request a review. Any request must be submitted in writing, addressed to and delivered to the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs, and include all supporting facts and arguments, no later than seven days after the notification of decision has been delivered

Comment [u43]: No substantive change. This addition is so that the reader does not have to refer back to the section that set out when a deferred responsibility resolution is not included in a student's record.

Comment [u44]: No Substantive change. This addition is so that the reader does not have to refer back to the section that set out when a review is allowed

Proposed April , 2017

Page 8-46

to the respondent, unless an extension has been granted by the conduct officer for the case. Complainants who wish to have the findings or sanctions of a Conduct Hearing Board reviewed must also submit their requests to the **[Dean of]** <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs no later than seven days after the notification of a decision has been delivered to them. The petition for a review must include the grounds for the review as well as supporting facts and arguments. Failure to meet either or both of these conditions will be sufficient cause to deny a review. The **[Dean of]** <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs will make the determination as to whether both conditions have been met. Normally, sanctions are in place from the time of imposition, but the **[Dean of]** <u>Vice</u> <u>President for</u> Student Affairs has discretion to suspend sanctions during the period in which the complaint is being reviewed.

The following are grounds for a review:

- a. New information, unavailable at the time of the board hearing, is now available and could materially affect the decision that was rendered.
- b. "The hearing deprived a party of a right the party had according to the rules and regulations governing the University Conduct System; and this deprivation materially affected the decision." In other words, a review can be filed on the grounds that the process was not conducted according to the procedures described in the Student Conduct Code and the process failure influenced the decision that was rendered.
- c. "The finding of is not supported by substantial evidence." In other words, a review can argue that the evidence was not supportive of the finding.
- d. "The sanction(s) imposed is not proportionate to the severity of the violation(s)." In other words, the review can argue that the sanctions were inappropriate when the circumstances of the act and prior record of the respondent or the impact on the complainant are considered.
- 8.120.1. <u>Review Process</u>. The President or his/her designee has fourteen (14) calendar days after the date the review is delivered to the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs

to respond to a petition for review, unless there are extenuating circumstances that require additional time for the review to be considered. The President or his/her designee may grant the review, and if so, decide whether to return the complaint to the hearing board or conduct officer for reconsideration, or to conduct the reconsideration herself/himself. Generally, reviews will involve a review of the hearing record, but the President or his/her designee may conduct a new hearing, interview witnesses or otherwise direct further investigation at her/his discretion. The standard for review is a deferential standard.

The President or his/her designee's decision will be sent via e-mail to the student's University e-mail address or United States Postal Service mail or hand delivered to the respondent and complainant, if applicable, to the last known address and will include a concise summary on why the decision was upheld or amended as well as information on the review process. Once mailed, such notice will be presumed to be delivered. Any decision rendered by the President or his/her designee will be final.

- 8.130. <u>Interpretation, Review, and Revision</u>. Questions of interpretation and periodic reviews of this policy will be administered in the following manner:
- 8.130.1. <u>Interpretation</u>. Any questions of interpretation regarding the Student Conduct Code will be referred to the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs or his/her designee for determination.
- 8.130.2. <u>Code Revision</u>. The Code will be reviewed once every five years under the direction of the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs. Review of this document should be done in conjunction with the University General Counsel, the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost, and the Student Government. Changes to the Code can be made as necessary at the request of the [Dean of] <u>Vice President for</u> Student Affairs, President, or Board of Governors, with the approval from the Board of Governors. Grammatical, editing, formatting and other non-substantive changes can be made at the

Page 8-49

discretion of the [Dean of] Vice President for Student Affairs or designee as needed

without approval of the Board.

[This code of conduct has been reviewed by Brett Sokolow from the National Center for Higher Education Risk Management www.ncherm.org. Some of the language may be proprietary and copyrighted. It is licensed to Truman State University for its use and publication, but all other uses and copying is prohibited without express permission from NCHERM]

Source: Resolutions of the Board dated September 12, 1992, June 28, 2003, June 16, 2006, February 17, 2007, June 20, 2009, April 14, 2012, April 12, 2014, August 2, 2014, October 10, 2014, August 1, 2015 and *April* _____, 2017.

1987 Compilation: Article 12

Comment [u45]: After a careful review of previous version of the Student Conduct Code it appears NCHERM merely reviewed the Code in the past The language if the Code is a produce of the University.

i i

EXHIBIT C

University Residence Site Work and Renovation Project Scope

Abatement: removal of materials containing asbestos in the basement and attic.

Exterior Storm Drainage/Site Work: improve storm drainage to eliminate water issues in basement and replacement of deteriorated driveway and sidewalk sections.

Heating and Air Conditioning: Replacement of 20 year old HVAC system.

Interior Painting: repaint all interior walls and trim as needed.

<u>Electrical Upgrade and Lighting</u>: replace obsolete electrical panels and wiring and replace lighting as needed.

Bathroom Renovations: replace hardware and fixtures as needed in first floor bathrooms.

Master Bath and Laundry Room: renovate master bath and relocate washer/dryer from basement to second floor linen room.

Second Floor Bathroom: replace hardware, add ventilation and repair damaged walls and restore tile.

<u>General Finishes</u>: repair damaged plaster in multiple locations and replace carpet and other flooring as needed.

EXHIBIT D

ITEM 1.4 Construction Project – Student Union HVAC Project

DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND

Updates to the air handling units which serve key areas of the Student Union Building including the main kitchen are needed. This work was not addressed in previous renovations of the building, but is needed to address problems with make-up air (outside ventilation) and condensation. The scope of work includes removing old rooftop units and installing make-up air units, exhaust fans and new duct work as needed. Other work includes installing the electronic controls for the system.

The work will be done under the Job Order Contract which is a competitively bid contract. These contracts are established via the National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) cooperative purchasing agreement and have been approved by the Missouri Division of Purchasing. The work will be performed by the Wilson Group, Inc., Greenwood, MO. Funds for this project are available in the Auxiliary Plant Funds Budget and the project budget is \$190,000.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

BE IT RESOLVED that the description and budgeted amount for the following project be approved:

Project Name	Project Budget
Student Union HVAC Project	\$190,000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the University, or her designee, be authorized to accept the lowest and best bid for the project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the description of the project, as reviewed at the meeting, be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

Moved by Seconded by		
Vote:	Aye_ Nav	

Board of Governors - April 8, 2017